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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (THE “GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AT B R R

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 to our shareholders and investors.

The Company was successfully listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 3 July
2013. The successful listing represented a milestone of the
Group that it has not only provided us a platform in the capital
markets for our growing business, but also facilitated us to
further promote our corporate image in the market.

We have experienced a challenging but brilliant year in 2013.
The launch of tapering its bond buying program by the U.S.
Federal Reserve shocked the precious metals market in the first
half year; and then the tense military situation in Syria and the
U.S. government shutdown caused by the political struggle on
the spending package stimulated the growing speculation in
the US dollar. Uncertainties in the recovery of global economy
influenced the forex market intermittently throughout the year.
Nevertheless, the Group had a good financial performance
during the year. The total income for the Group increased by
approximately 43.4%, from approximately HK$123.2 million in
2012 to approximately HK$176.7 million in 2013. The Group
recorded a profit for the year of approximately HK$34.8 million
in 2013 instead of a loss for the year of approximately HK$1.7
million in 2012.

For the year 2014, we expect the establishment of a new
subsidiary in the Zhuhai City Hengqgin New District of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) will bring us a new opportunity to
develop our business in the PRC. We remain confident in the
long-term prospect of our businesses despite a challenging
market environment. We will continue to strengthen our quality
services in order to offer exceptional value to our customers
and enhance the value to our employees, shareholders and

investors.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to all the shareholders and customers for their
invaluable support. | would also like to express our sincere
appreciation to all the employees of the Group for their hard
work and dedication.

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong,19 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, together
with the audited comparative figures for the corresponding year
in 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, the foreign exchange market
was volatile. The gold price started to drop from approximately
US$1,696/ounce in January 2013 to below US$1,200/ounce
in December 2013. The AUD/USD also retreated from 1.0500
level, to below 0.8900 in December 2013, the lowest level
since September 2010. The XAU/USD and EUR/USD are two
of the most popular trading pairs; the unexpected large market
volatility has boosted the profit margin of the margin leveraged
foreign trading business of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group launched a marketing
campaign to expand its local market share in addition to
its well-developed referral client base over the past years.
Furthermore, the Group put in additional resources in marketing
development after listing. As a result, the number of clients
increased by 30.7% for the period under review compared with
the year ended 31 December 2012.

During the year under review, the Group launched a US Dollar
Index Contract (“USDX”) and two new commodities under
leveraged trading, namely corn and soybean contracts for
difference (“CFD”). This is in line with the market trend that
investors invest in commodities in a way to safeguard the value
of their wealth.

The net deposit of the margin leveraged trading clients of the
Group has been increased 75.1% compared with the year
ended 31 December 2012. This has also enhanced the Group’s

leveraged margin trading profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total income

The total income of the Group increased by approximately
43.4% to approximately HK$176.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately HK$123.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income of the Group increased by approximately 55.9%
to approximately HK$135.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately HK$87.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012. This is mainly due
to the higher market volatility during the year ended 31
December 2013 as compared to that during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased by
approximately 23.6% from approximately HK$9.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 to HK$11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was
mainly attributable to the higher market volatility and
higher transaction volume for market maker hedge and
natural hedge in the cash dealing service business.

C. Other income

Other income of the Group increased by approximately
10.1% to approximately HK$29.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 from approximately HK$27.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The fees and commission income of the Group increased from
approximately HK$22.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately HK$26.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The major component of fees and commission
is the commission charged to the referred clients from leveraged
forex and dealing counterparties based on the trading volume.

The increase was mainly due to (i) the increase in the trading
volume of referred clients; and (ii) the increase in commission
income from margin dealing counterparties during the year
under review compared with the year ended 31 December 2012.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
an exchange loss of approximately HK$1.4 million while there
was an exchange loss of approximately HK$5.3 million during
the year ended 31 December 2012. This was mainly due to the
period-end translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income of the Group decreased to
approximately HK$2.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 from approximately HK$7.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. This is mainly due to the Group no longer
receiving management fee income from KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries which do not belong to the Group
(collectively, the “Non-Listed Group”) as a result of further
business separation from the Non-Listed Group.

Fees and commission expenses

The fees and commission expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 18.4% to approximately HK$57.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately HK$48.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in trading volume of the clients of the
Group referred by referral parties.

Staff costs

The staff cost of the Group increased slightly by approximately
4.4% to approximately HK$30.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately HK$29.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly due
to inflation and performance base incentive payment.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by approximately
10.5% to approximately HK$2.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 from approximately HK$2.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly due to
newly capitalised office equipment and leasehold improvements

for the period under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 1.7% to approximately HK$5.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately HK$5.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 as the lease of
the Beijing office of the Group was renewed in November 2012
with an increase in rent.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
decreased by approximately 13.5% to approximately HK$29.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately
HK$34.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. This
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in absorption of
the listing expenses by approximately HK$6.8 million during
the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2012 as most of the listing works were
carried out in 2012.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved net profit of
approximately HK$34.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The net loss margin of approximately 1.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was changed to a net profit margin of
approximately 19.7% for the year ended 31 December 2013. In
summary, the increase in profitability of the Group was primarily
contributed by:

° higher market volatility resulting in higher leverage foreign
exchange trading income and other trading income; and

o higher commission rebate income from referred client and
dealing counter parties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the operations of the Group
have been financed principally by equity capital, cash generated
by the Group’s business operations and the cash and bank

deposits.

I Z ke S g A

T REFHEENR

T EREFNEENFBABEE-E—ZF1+=
A=+—H1EFE 45,800,000/ T K 41.7%
EHE_Z—=F+-_A=+-—BIEEH
5,900,000/ 7t * AR AEBE R IE R PHA
ER_T—F+—ABEEMAES LRATE -

THRRAMEERS

REEMNTHEREMEERYABE T ——F
+Z A =+—H LFE #34,100,000/% 7t & L
13 5% EHETE—=F+_A=+—HILEHF
£ #929,500,000 7T - ZRM L N EEHREZR
—E=F+ A=+ HLFERMETAY
BEE-T——F+-_A=+—BIEFEHIH
6,800,000/ LA 2L - REAERHH £ TER
—E-FHE -

RR A R AR R

ER LB h  AEERBE-Z—=F1+=A
=+ —HIEFEEIRFHEF 434,800,000/ 7T °
HBEE T —F+ - A=1+—BIFEH1.4%
WEEEREARE T =F+-_A=1+—8H
IEFEN19.7%HFRAE - BIEME - A% EH
BRENEATIEB AR ¢

. MK RRAGEERAINER S WA K
Hitp 2 ZUWAEI + &

. BENEFERRZHUFHAEEESENK

A
RBETRMBER

REEHA  AEENEETEARARAEE
EBEBERMSREULBAS RRBITHFRIERE

T e




il £ ) A FR 2~ )

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E a2 [

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (financial
lease obligation and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries) over
the total shareholders’ fund as at 31 December 2013 was
approximately 0.13% (2012: 2.0%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
loss of approximately HK$1.4 million (2012: approximately
HK$5.3 million). This was mainly due to the month-end translation
of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency into local
reporting currency by the subsidiary of the Group in New
Zealand. The main contributor to this result was the depreciation
of AUD and the exchange rate of AUD/NZD changed from
approximately 1.2612 as at 31 December 2012 to 1.0878 as at
31 December 2013.

The foreign currency risk is managed proactively by regular
review of the currency positions in the basket of currency mix.
In order to minimise the exposure of the Group to risk, the Group
has hedge strategy based on prevailing market conditions and
working capital requirements of sub-companies.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group launched a US Dollar Index Contract and two new
commodities under leveraged trading, namely corn and soybean
contracts for difference during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE
PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group engaged a total of 55
employees (2012: a total of 60). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$30.8 million (2012: HK$29.5 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of performance
and experience of individual employees.

The Group provides retirement benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the place where the staff is
employed.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
which the Directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$45.1 million were used to secure
the banking facilities and the offices lease bonds.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The future investment plans of the Group are detailed in the
sub-section headed “Business objectives and future plans”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company expects to:

(i) expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
and Japanese communities;

(i) increase the range of the financial services and products
of the Group;

(iii)  further upgrade the online trading platform of the Group;
and

(iv)  strategically grow through mergers and acquisitions.
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The source of funding for these investment plans is from the net
proceeds of the placing of the Company (as disclosed in the
Prospectus) of approximately HK$125.3 million. The Directors
presently intend that the net proceeds has been and will be
applied as follows:

ZEREENESRRIIRAARRBEENE
FIEFEE (R BAR ER AT EE) £9125,300,000
B EEHACE MRS FIBFEAENT
B#

Actual
approximate
Intended amount
usage up to utilized up to
Intended 31 December 31 December
amount 2013 2013
BZE
Bz —®-=%
—2-=% +ZBA=t-H
+=A=t+-8 ZEBAZ
RAtE ZRASHE ERENEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Expansion of operations in the BREFEINEARAFHEES
worldwide overseas Chinese and
Japanese communities 36,000,000 1,500,000 -
Increase in the range of the financial ENASESBRERERNESR
services and products of the Group 35,000,000 5,000,000 -
Further upgrade of the online trading E—ATEREENELRS5TA
platform of the Group 28,000,000 5,000,000 641,488
Strategic growth through mergers BAGENRERITER
and acquisitions 21,000,000 1,000,000 -
During the year under review, the Group was still in the process  REIBEER @ AEEEFRICEE - M

of fixing the investment plans, which lead to the difference
between the proposed usage and the exact usage of the net
proceeds.

The Group spent HK$641,488 in 2013 to revamp the network
in order to improve the efficiency, security, availability and
manageability of the online trading network. The Group will
continuously review and develop its trading system and
information technology infrastructure.

The Group has been conducting on-going studies on identifying
hot spots to develop new branches or subsidiaries. The Group
is currently setting up the new PRC subsidiary located in Zhuhai
City Hengqgin New District. The Group has also been performing
market studies to explore commercial viability for new products.

The Directors plan to use the remaining net proceeds of
approximately HK$5.3 million for general working capital
purposes. As at 31 December 2013, such net proceeds have
already been utilized for general working capital purposes.
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The biographical details in respect of the directors (the
“Directors”) and the senior management of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) as at the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan (2R3 L 4), aged 47, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Liu has been a director of KVB
Kunlun New Zealand Limited (“KVB NZ”), KVB Kunlun Pty
Ltd (“KVB AU”) and KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited
("“KVB HK”) since September 2001, August 2002 and June
2004, respectively. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible officers
of KVB HK. Mr. Liu is also a director of each of LXL Capital |
Limited (“LXL Capital 1"), LXL Capital Il Limited (“LXL Capital
[1"), LXL Capital lll Limited (“LXL Capital IlI"), LXL Capital IV
Limited (“LXL Capital IV"), LXL Capital VIII Limited (“LXL Capital
VIII™), LXL Capital IX Limited (“LXL Capital 1X”), York Castle
Development Limited (“York Castle”) and Yorkastle Capital
Limited (“Yorkastle”).
director of the Group in March 2006 and the country manager of
New Zealand and Australia in August 2011. Mr. Liu is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the

Mr. Liu was appointed the managing

Group. Mr. Liu is also a director of KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited (“KVB Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries of KVB
Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing director of Aiming
International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from August 1997 to
August 2001 and was responsible for fostering the development
plan, structuring investment direction and strategy, liaising and
maintaining relationships with counterparties and searching
for and maintaining public relationship with potential strategic
investors. Mr. Liu was the deputy manager of Tianjin Tai Ying
International Trade Company Limited (KEZREBEBFE S5 ER A
A]) from February 1996 to February 1998 and was responsible
for marketing activities in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and liaising with overseas traders, the deputy manager
of Tianjin Feibiao Textiles Company Limited (KERE 4 mE
fR A &) from April 1995 to February 1996 and was responsible
for market analysis of imported raw materials for textile in the
PRC, the senior manager of the Tianjin Office of American Trade
and Exhibition International Company (EEEZBEEE A7) from
October 1993 to April 1995 and was responsible for managing
the expansion of the PRC market and developing relationships
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with marketing firms and the assistant manager of Tianjin Liming
REBPMAmME L TEAT)
from July 1989 to March 1993 and was responsible for market

Cosmetics Joint Industry Company (

analysis, expansion of market and training for corporate clients.
With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 11 years of experience in
the forex market which is relevant to the management, operation
and development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K&
SNEEEARE) in July 1989. Mr. Liu was appointed as a Director
on 9 November 2010.

Mr. NG Chee Hung Frederick (R85 54 ), aged 58, joined the
Group in August 2006 and has been an executive director of
KVB HK since June 2009. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing
the operations of KVB HK and the treasury and dealing functions
of the Group. Mr. Ng is also the executive director and one of the
responsible officers of each of KVB HK and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Mr. Ng
is also a director of each of LXL Capital IV, LXL Capital VIII,
LXL Capital IX, York Castle and Yorkastle. Mr. Ng has over 26
years of experience in the financial services industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Ng had worked at corporations in Hong
Kong, Toronto, Tokyo, Singapore and Shanghai. From 2002 to
2006, Mr. Ng was the managing partner of Quantitative Asset
Management Group which was engaged in asset management
and he was responsible for managing and overseeing daily
operations including all trade execution and reconciliation. From
June 1992 to January 2002, Mr. Ng was employed with Credit
Agricole Group (a banking group based in France) and served
in various positions including vice president and regional forex
manager — North Asia, senior vice president and head of forex
trading hub — Asia, treasurer — China, and head of sales of
Greater China and assistant general manager of capital markets.
From October 1978 to January 1992, Mr. Ng was employed with
the Royal Bank of Canada and last held the position of forex
manager. Mr. Ng is a certified hedge fund specialist conferred
upon by the Hedge Fund Association of Canada in September
2003. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute of Public Accountants,
Australia and a certified member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants, Australia. Mr. Ng was appointed as
a Director on 15 April 2011.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LI Zhi Da (Z=&E%HE), aged 60, is the chairman of the
board of Directors. Mr. Li is one of the founders of the Group and
one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li was
a director of each of KVB NZ and KVB HK since their respective
incorporation until May 2009 and June 2009, respectively. Mr.
Li is also a director of each of KVB Holdings, LXL Capital | and
LXL Capital Il. Mr. Li was the legal representative of a private
company engaged in the business of production and sales of
cosmetics in the PRC, including the brand “Mininurse”. Since
the disposal of the cosmetics business in December 2003, Mr.
Li has diversified his investments into other business areas
including tourism business in the PRC. Mr. Li obtained his
master’'s degree in project management from the Zhejiang
University (GHTAE) in March 1994. Mr. Li was appointed as a
Director on 30 August 2011.

Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 61, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was later
appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr. McCoy
is also a director of KVB AU and LXL Capital Ill. Mr. McCoy is
also a director of other subsidiaries of KVB Holdings which do
not belong to the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. McCoy
worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as an internal auditor from
May 2002 to December 2003 and later as the head of operations
from January 2004 to October 2006 and was responsible for
managing the operations department of the bank including
treasury settlements, retail operations, loan administration, office
administration, trade finance and product compliance in line
with regulatory authorities and policies and procedures of the
bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at Westpac Banking
Corporation for over 30 years from February 1969 to April 2001
and last held the position of manager of operational risk. With the
previous and current positions held by Mr. McCoy in the Group
and other companies, Mr. McCoy has obtained over 41 years
of combined experience in the financial services industry which
is relevant to the operation and development of the Group. Mr.

McCoy was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (22 T), aged 50, joined the Group in
April 2011. From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at
Tianjin Jiandu Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (K;ZE4E&
&R AR AF]) which was engaged in property and investment
and she was responsible for providing consultation services in
project financing, cooperation in public affairs and international
investment matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao
also provided consultation services in finance and investment
related matters to Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co.
Ltd. (REEFIKEZER AR A F]) which was engaged in property
and investment. From July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was
appointed the general manager of the audit department of China
Citic Bank, Tianjin branch and was responsible for managing
the overall performance of the audit department, implementing
policies and procedures and other management work. Ms. Zhao
has over 21 years of experience in accounting and auditing
matters including but not limited to financial analysis, financial
management, asset management, assessment and auditing of
financial positions and involvement in financial and auditing
decision making process. Ms. Zhao completed the course in
economics and management organised by the Party School of
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (FR £t & &
) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further completed the course
in business administration organised by Nankai University (5
FAKE) in September 1999 and obtained her master’s degree
in arts in international relations in economy and trade from The
Flinders University of South Australia in October 2002. Ms. Zhao
was assessed and awarded the qualification of accountant by
the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992. Ms. Zhao was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 56, first joined the Group
In June 2005, he
was appointed as the joint Group managing director (group

in December 2003 as a senior consultant.

operations and treasury) and managing director (designate
proposed banking division) and held that position until he
left the Group in April 2008. Since March 2003, Mr.
has been a director of Keyser Merchant & Capital Finance

Keyser

(New Zealand) Limited which is engaged in the provision of
consultation services and he is responsible for managing all
aspects of such company and acts as a consultant. From July
1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of group
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treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser
is a member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
Mr. Keyser has over 21 years of experience in the financial
industry. Mr. Keyser obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial
psychology, his honours degree in economics and his master’s
degree in economics from the Rand Afrikaans University in April
1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LIN Wenhui (/A3 3E5C4), aged 35, joined the Group in
July 2011. Mr. Lin has been a senior auditor of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Beijing since September 2011. From April 2009 to
September 2011, Mr. Lin was a manager of RSM China Certified
Public Accountants (RInEZEEFTAISEMAT). Mr. Lin served
as a project manager in the taxation and accounting services
department of Reanda Certified Public Accountants (FlZiE®
TR SR AR E T A R]) from September 2004 to March 2006
and a manager assistant in the audit department of the same
firm from April 2006 to December 2008. From August 2002 to
September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in the accounting department
of the head company of the Beijing Shougang Oxygen Plant
(At R EIHERB) which was engaged in the production and
sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial enterprises.
Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting from the
Harbin University of Commerce (FMEBRIZEAE) in July 2002.
Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting professional from
the Finance Bureau of Beijing (JtRMHE/E) in June 2003
and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations and
was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance
(BB EREMEstaE s EZ 8 ) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
recognised by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (% A R £ F1
Bl Bf B EF) since April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director
on 16 July 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun (55/8% ZZ1L) is the regional financial
controller of New Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2002 as the financial controller.
Ms. Zhang has also been a director of KVB NZ since May
2009. From December 1997 to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served
as a senior accountant at HWI Limited Chartered Accountants
and was responsible for preparing financial statements and
tax returns and providing tax advice. Ms. Zhang has over 15
years of experience in accounting matters in New Zealand. Ms.
Zhang obtained her bachelor’'s degree in accounting from the
Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000. Ms. Zhang has
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand since January 2002.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan (ZM8JR5L4) is the director of global
margin business. Mr. Huang joined the Group in August 2002
as an executive accountant of KVB NZ and was responsible for
general accounting duties, book-keeping and financial reports.
Mr. Huang was the manager of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and
was responsible for the implementation of its dealing system and
the day-to-day running of its global forex dealing operations and
all its associated financial management, and is currently one
of the responsible officers of KVB HK. Mr. Huang obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in accounting from the Sun Yat-Sen University
(FLLUARE) in June 1999, his master’s degree in international
business from the Auckland Institute of Studies at St. Helens,

New Zealand in December 2000 and his graduate diploma in
commerce from the University of Auckland in May 2002. Mr.
Huang became a chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute
in September 2006.
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Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen (855 1E5C4) is the head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior
sales executive of margin forex of KVB AU. Mr. So is at present
a director of KVB AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked
at The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities
Holdings Limited from March 1994 to December 2002 and was
responsible for providing investment advice and dealing with
private clients and retail clients, first as a senior investment
consultant in The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited and
thereafter as a senior manager of the global investment division
of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. So has over 17 years
of experience in advising clients on financial products ranging
from securities, indices and stock futures and options to other
financial products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992. Mr. So
also obtained the diploma in financial services issued by the
Australian Financial Markets Association in 2003.

Mr. WAI Chi Hong Christopher (ZE5FE%4E) is the project
management officer. Mr. Wai joined the Group in April 2007 as
the senior project manager of KVB HK. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Wai worked as technical services manager, senior project
manager and engineer for various private companies and the
government of Hong Kong and was responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of in-house information technology
support and maintenance and providing support of graphics
and geographic information system and engineering data
management solution and various design automation projects
covering printed circuit board and mechanical design. Mr.
Wai has over 21 years of experience in information technology
industry specialising in project implementation of enterprise
information systems. Mr. Wai obtained his bachelor’s degree

in applied science from the University of Toronto in June 1989.

EH - R BE s R

BREERERKVBEMNEETE - HEEN T
TZFRAMAREE L EKVBEMINERTE 2
EBSREETE - HELBEARKBEMNNE
o MAXREER  HEER-NANANRF=ZRAZE
“ER_FT _ACRBEAEARTERRAR

BESARARIE AERHEREER LA
IABFPRZERFRS  BIETEBEAR
TERARNSRRERR  BRETHEES
BERAFNRMBRELSHEE - HEENHE
BMEM (BHEES  BHH - BREHE  BEEE
fteREME) AIXPREBRTHBERI7TFL
B MEER— NN _FHABSRMBEEKRS
NBTEM - HEETNR _FTE=_FERMNEH
IS RESBRBER -

ESEXRERBHEETE - BRANR_TTL
FHAMAREBRLEKVBEEHRIE R KIE -

MAXEER  BRERZHLARRREFBK
R ERMRGLE - SHEEKLERTZA -

BEEFAREANKXERGENATEE
RHUBFLEERARGXE  TRBUREER
R TTE N 2 EVR E BR AR B AR AR AT A0 2 (B AR R
BEMCEE - EREREMBMRITERELESR
AERGHIAEBERS MEA21FER - BERER
—NNFRNAESZRERBEANBELE

(VAR




KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E 2 [ 4 Fil 45 B A5 R 2 )

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

EH - R BLE R AR E

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wing Sze (£[#k#F2T) is the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in May 2012.
Ms. Cheng is responsible for the company secretarial matters
of the Group. Before joining the Group, Ms. Cheng was the
company secretary of New Capital International Investment
Limited (now known as China Development Bank International
Investment Limited) (a company engaged in investment and
is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with stock code 1062)
and was responsible for the group’s company secretarial
matters. Ms. Cheng has over 11 years of experience in the
company secretarial field. Ms. Cheng is an associate member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries (now
known as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries)
in Hong Kong and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrations in the United Kingdom. Ms. Cheng is also an
associate member of CPA Australia. Ms. Cheng obtained her
bachelor of business administration, her postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, her master of business administration from The
University of Adelaide, Australia and her master of accounting
from Curtin University of Technology, Australia (now known as

Curtin University).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards
of corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders. It
has continued and will continue to identify and adopt the best
corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the period from the date of listing of the shares of the
Company, i.e. 3 July 2013 (the “Listing Date”), to 31 December
2013, the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
the Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

Having made specified enquiry with the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings during the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for the
formulation of strategies and policies, including an oversight
of the management. The management of the Company is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company under
the leadership of the chief executive officer.

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including (i) two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Stefan (as
chief executive officer) and Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick; (ii) two
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Zhi Da and Mr. Stephen
Gregory McCoy; and (iii) three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. One of the independent non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Lin Wenhui, has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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In determining the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements set out in
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company is of the view
that all the independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted
a board diversity policy which stated that the Board sees
diversity as a wide concept and believes that a diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity, the Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Board believes that such merit-based appointments will best
enable the Company to serve its clients, shareholders and other

stakeholders going forward.
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Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the chief executive officer of the Company, supported
by other members of the Board and the senior management,
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Group. As at 31 December 2013,
the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer are by Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director, and Mr.
Liu Stefan, an executive Director, respectively.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. A circular which
includes the biographical details of the retiring Directors who
stand for re-election together with the notice of annual general
meeting of the Company will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company in due course.

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year of
approximately quarterly internals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Company. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and

independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Board held three regular board meetings and the Company
did not hold any general meetings, and the attendance records
of these meetings are set out below:

RETHHE-_Z—=F+_A=+—HHH"
EXEeHBOTZAEHESTESH  MARA
WEBITEMBRRAE - ZEGH L FE LT
LU

Attendance Attendance
(for Board (for general
meetings) meetings)
HiE HE
(EEgER) (BRAE)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Stefan BUfREE £ 3/3 0/0
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick RIEBR A 3/3 0/0
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Li Zhi Da TEEEA 1/3 0/0
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy5t A4 3/3 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors BY FHITES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HERZ T 3/3 0/0
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert 4 3/3 0/0
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR A 3/3 0/0

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Director.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Company has arranged an in-house seminar for the Directors
on the topic of merger and acquisition transactions and the
related duties of the Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B1.2 of the Code
has been adopted. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to evaluate the performance and determine
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on any other employee benefit
arrangement. At present, the Remuneration Committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Remuneration Committee held two meetings. Details of the
attendance of the Remuneration Committee meeting during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013 are set out
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below:
Attendance
HE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) WEELYE (£EF) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS & 2/2

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of appointment of the Directors, and considered
granting share options to Directors and other eligible participants
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a written resolution dated 3 June 2013.
The Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to
approve the listing bonus and discussed the future plan for
granting share options, salary increment and bonus to Directors.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing terms

of appointment of the Directors are fair and reasonable.
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Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2013, in a meeting
of the Remuneration Committee, it recommended that the annual

BHE_Z-—=F+-A=+—RHILFE®%R  XF
MzEgemlL ZRIMALTLERRERLE

director’s fees and salaries of Mr. Liu Stefan and Mr. Ng Chee SFNEFHELFLHRUTHAE T -F
Hung Frederick, being executive Directors, would be adjusted ~—PAF—HA—HEERL :
as follows with effect from 1 January 2014:
Salary Dis-
Director and other cretionary
Name of Director fee benefits bonuses
FER
E=nS Exwud HAsEF BHEEA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHAT THET
Mr. Liu Stefan BIMEEE 120 374 365
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick KRB A 120 787 393

The above recommendations have been approved by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A5.2 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding nomination of suitable candidate to fill vacancies in
the Board. At present, the Nomination Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao
Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms.
Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013, REMABE-_T—=F+_A=+—HHME
the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Details of the RHBZECRITT —ATH - RBZEToRH
attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out B4 ERFFFIAT -
below:

Attendance

HE

Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEELtE (EFE) 11
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft 4 1/1
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR A& 1/1
28
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Nomination Committee has considered and reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the process and criteria
to select and recommend candidates for directorship. The
Nomination Committee recommended the Board to approve
the proposed sequence for re-election of retiring Directors
in 2014 annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee
considers that the existing policy for nomination, selection and
recommendation for directorship are suitable.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph D3.1 of the Code has
been adopted. The primary duties of the CG Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendation to the Board.
At present, the CG Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman
of the CG Committee. All members are independent non-
executive Directors, except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
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the CG Committee held one meeting. Details of the attendance THXBRZEERITT —Ag# - EXERZE
of the CG Committee meeting are set out below: eEREFLETIET

Attendance

HE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser (Chairman) Cornelis Jacobus Keyserfc4 (/&) 1/1

Mr. Liu Stefan BIRFE A& 11

Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEL LT 1/1

Mr. Lin Wenhui MRICIB S 11
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the CG Committee has considered and reviewed the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance. The CG
Committee discussed the timing of the corporate governance
report, recommended the framework of corporate governance
of the Group and the role of the company secretary. The CG
Committee considers that the existing policies and practices of
corporate governance of the Company are suitable.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 19 December 2012 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Company, nominate
and monitor external auditors and provide advice and comments
to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin
and Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditor of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of this report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Audit Committee held two meetings. The attendance records
of the Audit Committee meetings during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2013 are set out below:
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Attendance

HE

Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MXERE (FE) 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEL LT 2/2
Mr. Corenlis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Audit Committee reviewed with the management and the
auditors of the Company their audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company, legal and
regulatory compliance, and financial reporting matters (including
the interim financial information of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2013 and the third quarterly financial
information of the Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2013).

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirement and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section headed “Independent auditor’s report” of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal
control.

The Board has conducted a review of the system of internal
control of the Group, and made suggestions to improve the
system. The Board was satisfied that the internal control system
of the Group, after implementing the suggested improvements,
would be effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit
and non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the
following table:

ERBUKBRHABAEEZ MIFEZERHEMR
BEN,/ ENOEERSENTX

2013 2012
—_E—-= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

— Audit services — EAZARTE 2,150 2,865
— Non-audit services — IEE R - -
Total BEE 2,150 2,865

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

IR R EF

REARFMABERAMAESSE R —HKZ
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TOIRRFHIAGE R WARBRRRER#
RHZEEFNEANTAZREEFERRAMNE
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In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company would like to call for an
extraordinary general meeting, please make a written requisition
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong from time
to time, making attention to “The Board of Directors and the
Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association. If shareholders wish to do so, they
may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting as
stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon as
practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, there have not been any significant

changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

, together with

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2013 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income” of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated

statement of changes in equity” of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float for the
period from 3 July 2013 to 31 December 2013.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the share premium account and retained earnings of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2013, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$168 million (2012: HK$44 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year, the aggregate percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately 68.4%
of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 26.9%.

For the year, the aggregate percentage of sales attributable to
the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
29.2% of the total sales of the Group and the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 11.9%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or their associates (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)

had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had
declared special dividends of HK$1 and HK$0.6 per ordinary
share based on the outstanding shares on 21 May 2013 and 3
June 2013. Total special dividends of HK$16,000,000 were paid
to the then shareholders of the Company. On 8 November 2013,
the Board has resolved to pay a third quarterly dividend of 0.675
HK cents per ordinary share and distributed to the shareholders
on 3 December 2013. A total of HK$13,500,000 for the third
quarter was paid to the then shareholders.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.5 HK
cent per ordinary share to the shareholders. The final dividend,
if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, will be paid on Thursday, 22 May 2014 to the
shareholders whose name appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 14 May 2014.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 3.16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 is disclosed in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”), as
identified below.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June
2013 (the “Prospectus”), the Company has entered into a shared
services agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement on 3 June 2013 (together, the “Shared Services
Agreement”) with KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”,
together with its subsidiaries which do not belong to the Group,
the “Non-Listed Group”), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to provide or procure the subsidiaries of the Company to
provide group management, information technology, marketing
and administration support services to the Non-Listed Group
subject to the terms and conditions of the Shared Services
Agreement. The proposed cap amounts of the fees to be
received by the Group under the Shared Services Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013, and
ending 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are
HK$2,905,000, HK$3,050,000 and HK$3,203,000 respectively.
Such transactions are subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements.

Moreover, as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have
entered into the following transactions which are subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ requirements:

(i) the Company has entered into an office licence
agreement on 18 December 2012 and a supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2013 (together, the “Office
Licence Agreement”) with KVB Holdings, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to provide or procure
the subsidiaries of the Company to provide the sharing
of the offices to the Non-Listed Group subject to the
terms and conditions of the Office Licence Agreement.
The proposed cap amounts of the fees to be received by
the Group under the Office Licence Agreement for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2013 and ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are HK$11.4
million, HK$11.9 million and HK$12.5 million, respectively;

and
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(i)

the Company has entered into cash dealing agreement on
18 December 2012 and a supplemental agreement dated
3 June 2013 (together, the “Cash Dealing Agreement”)
with KVB FX Limited (“KVB FX”), KVB FX Pty Limited
(“KVB FX Pty”) and KVB Kunlun Canada Inc. (*KVB CA”),
being members of the Non-Listed Group. Pursuant to the
Cash Dealing Agreement, KVB NZ has agreed to provide
the cash dealing services to each of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty
and KVB CA, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Cash Dealing Agreement. The proposed cap amounts
of the aggregate trading volume of KVB FX, KVB FX Pty
and KVB CA under the Cash Dealing Agreement for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2013 and ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are US$2.9
billion, US$2.9 billion and US$2.9 billion, respectively.

Further details in relation to the Shared Services Agreement, the

Office Licence Agreement and the Cash Dealing Agreement are

set out in the Prospectus.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and

confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions

have been entered into:

(iif)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with

the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above in accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of
this report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of
this report are set out in the section of “Directors and senior

management” of this report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
B

REZEGAMASEMNBTEEZTETER
30005 [ 2 B 15 B Rt iz sk BB AN ZERE T
1] W2 EBBHA7405 [ FE LHRBBREN
SEREXZNRBE K] ARRRZEEE
YRHASEFERERSELRSE - RIFAIE
R ET AR AISE20.380F - ZBEIE M ARER £
X[HBERERS ] —HRENKEBRERS -
ZHERBERNNE  YHEHRERMEHE
FREXHERERSZ | OO - ARFEH
TR B 1 B A T B S PR AR o

=
HE-Z—=F+-A=+—HLFEKEEAR
WEHH  EFeRENTES

HITES

IR (7T AEE)

REE A

FHITES

FHRERE (F/F)

Stephen Gregory McCoy %t 4

BAFHTES

MERZt+
Cornelis Jacobus Keyserft &
X IBILE

RABERHZEETREABTHRNARE [EF
KRESMERE] —f-




KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E a2 [

il £ ) A FR 2~ )

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
L

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS APPOINTED AFTER THE
LAST GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with article 83(3) of the current articles of
association of the Company, any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

During the year under review, none of the Directors were
appointed preceding general meeting of the Company after the
adoption of the current articles of association of the Company,
and hence none of the Directors would retire under article 83(3)
of the current articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent

non-executive Director were appointed for a term of 1 year from
the date of listing of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors and chief executive has any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)
which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules:

Name of Director Nature of shares interested
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Number of Percentage of

shares interested shareholding

EEnSR FEERGOZUE BEREZRHOBE REBESE
Mr. Li Zhi Da (“Mr. Li”) Interest in controlled corporation 1,500,000,000 75.00
FHERE ([FRED NEEGEE 2 s (note)

(Btat)

Note:

These 1,500,000,000 shares are held by KVB Holdings. As Mr. Li is
entitled to control over one-third of the voting power at general meetings
of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to be interested in these
1,500,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.
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#Z F1,5600,000,0008% K 17 EKVB Holdings#F & ° H
REFLEBEITHIKVB HoldingsiR A @ L 8 =5
L2 REE  RIFFESREEIEG] - B ARKVB
Holdings# &2 1,500,000,000/% % (7 # 1 B 12 °




KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | B iy 5 [ = bl 2 3 A R )

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
L

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

So far as is known to the Directors as at 31 December 2013, the BEZHM  R-ZZT—=F+=-A=+—H Ik
following persons had an interest or short positions in the shares N ALTRAREZ Mty S8 B 5 H % B 7R ad 8%
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register R ARIRE 75 & B & (& 7] 533616 Fr 77 2 & AL fil

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: RERBRE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name Capacity shares held capital
8 g4 FERGEA REBDL
KVB Holdings (note 1) Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 75.00
KVB Holdings (#/:£1) EmEEA
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Limited (note 2)
Calypso International Investment EmEEA
Co., Limited (##7%2)
HNA Group (International) Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33
Company Limited (8MEE (FEEK
AR AA]) (formerly known as HNA
Group International Headquarter
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited
(5 B BR 0 (F5)
BBRAA])) (note 2)
USRS ( B) BRA REZEHEE 2
Q:OpENERIES IIB’%%!E.‘B(%-S;‘%)
BRRAE)) (Ait2)
HNA Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33
(BMEEBRAF]) (note 2)
BMEEERLIE (Ait2) NEEHEE 2
Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33
(EREEREAFRRAT) (note 2)
FRRERERR AR (Bfit2) REZEHEE 2
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33
Co., Ltd. (BEXEZERER A F])
(note 2)
BREAREERAERAR (Kfit2) MEEGEE 2
Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33
Co. Ltd. (B/E# R (FH) AR AR
(note 2)
BERRE OFH) ARATR) (#it2) NEEGEE 2 s
Labour Union of Hainan Airlines Interest in controlled corporation 106,525,000 5.33

Co., Ltd. (BEMZE=RMHER A A
IA?E@) (note 2)

BEMERGERATICEZES RZEHEE 2 s
(Hiat2)

42



Notes:

1. Mr. Li, a non-executive Director, was entitled to control over
one-third of the voting power at general meetings of KVB
Holdings.

2. As confirmed by Calypso International Investment Co., Limited,
as at 31 December 2013, Calypso International Investment
Co., Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of HNA Group
(International) Company Limited (/G2 (EE) R a])
(formerly known as HNA Group International Headquarter
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited (/@RiEBEIRRBE (&%) HRA
a])), which was in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group
Co., Ltd. (BMEREER L A]). HNA Group Co., Ltd. was held
as to 30% by Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. (F#HiZ
EREHFMRANE) and 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration
Holding Co., Ltd. (BEXEFRERZLE]). Hainan Traffic
Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn held as to 50%
by Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd. (Z/F%E/E

(#£#) BR 22 7]). Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.
was held as to 65% by the Labour Union of Hainan Airlines Co.,
Ltd. (EEMZERNERAGIIEEZLER).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest
in options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which any member of the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” above, no contract of significance (including
provision of services) between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

During the period under review, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any business or interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

For the purpose of the listing of the Company, each of KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li,
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 December 2012

being a non-executive Director, have
and the supplemental deed dated 3 June 2013 (collectively, the
“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company, further
details of which are disclosed in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by KVB Holdings
and Mr. Li during the period under review, and are satisfied
that Deed of Non-competition have been complied with by KVB
Holdings and Mr. Li during the period under review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 3 June 2013.

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract,
retain and motivate talented Participants (as defined
below) to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
the following persons as participants (the “Participants”)
of the Scheme:

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including
any independent non-executive Director or any
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any
member of the Group;
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(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary
or otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business associate of
the Group;

(iii)  any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical,
financial or corporate management) and other
adviser to any member of the Group;

(iv)  any provider of goods and/or services to the
Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant,
the Board would take into account such factors as the
Board may at its discretion consider appropriate.

Basis for determining the subscription price and
acceptance of offer

The subscription price for the shares under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Board at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant
and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
granted; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date on
which an option is granted; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum
in any currency as the Board may determine) by way of
consideration for the grant.
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(d)

(e)

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (the “General Scheme Limit”) unless further
shareholders’ approval is obtained in general meeting,
provided that options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme was 200,000,000
shares of the Company, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2013.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
further to be granted in any 12-month period (including
both exercised and outstanding options) and in the
12-month period up to and including the acceptance
date (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not in isolation or aggregate exceed 1% of
the shares, and any grant of option which would result
in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and

any associate thereof abstaining from voting.

(d)
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(9)

(h)

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the period commencing on the first business day
from the date of grant of option and expiring at the close
of business on a date to be determined and notified by
the Directors which shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated
at the time of granting the option, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option
to any qualifying participants.

Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no share
options have been granted, and hence there was no
movement of any options granted under the Scheme.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors, chief
executive, substantial shareholders of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe for the shares
of the Company under the Scheme.

()

(9)

(h)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2013,

(iii)

*

48

on 10 January 2014, the Company granted share
options to 68 individuals (“Grantees”) to subscribe for
an aggregate of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company, subject to acceptance of the Grantees, under
the Scheme;

on 29 January 2014, the Company entered into an
information technology (“IT”) services agreement
with Banclogix System Co., Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of KVB Holdings, one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company, pursuant to
which Banclogix will from time to time provide software
development and maintenance services, IT infrastructure
project management and maintenance services, and IT
risk assessment services to the Group, with proposed
annual caps of HK$5,000,000 and HK$5,500,000 for the
period from 29 January 2014 to 31 December 2014 and for
the year ending 31 December 2015 respectively. Further
details of the above transaction has been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 January 2014;
and

on 5 March 2014, Zhuhai City Henggin New District
Administration for Industry and Commerce (BkK/EmEZE
e T 1T E D) has granted the business licence of
KEREERTESMISHOLERAT (Zhuhai Henggin
Kunlun Financial Exchange Limited*), which has become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

For identification purpose only
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the period from 3 July 2013 to 31 December 2013, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last three financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial summary” of this report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTEREST

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Quam Capital Limited to be the
compliance adviser. Pursuant to Rule 6A.23 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the compliance adviser will advise the Company in the
following circumstances:

(a) before the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

(b) where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction, is contemplated including share
issues and share repurchases;

(c) where the Company proposes to use the proceeds of
the placing in a manner different from that detailed
in the Prospectus or where the business activities,
developments or results of the Company deviate from
any information in the Prospectus; and

(d) where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price or
trading volume of the shares of the Company or any other
matters under Rule 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2013, as notified by Quam Capital Limited,
neither Quam Capital Limited nor any of its directors, employees
or associates (as referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6A.31 of the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in the securities of the Company.
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Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 6 June
2013 entered into between the Company and Quam Capital
Limited, Quam Capital Limited has received and shall receive
monthly service fee for acting as the Company’s retained
compliance adviser for the period from 3 July 2013, being the
date of listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, to the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of its financial results for the second
full financial year commencing after the date of its initial listing.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$136,000.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong,19 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ErEEEREBERAR

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e AL

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-2—=F+-A=+—ALFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FABT
Leveraged foreign exchange TR IMNE R E A2 SHURA
and other trading income 6 135,543 86,951
Cash dealing income RERFWA 6 11,505 9,310
Other income Hi g A 7 29,671 26,961
Total income WA 458 176,719 123,222
Fees and commission expenses ERARMAEHY 57,768 48,804
Staff costs 8 TRk 8 30,819 29,532
Depreciation and amortisation e ey 2,550 2,307
Lease payments under land T RIEFEAE K
and buildings 5,873 5777
Administrative and other TR EMEERT
operating expenses 9 29,456 34,064
Total expenses Sz 42 =8 126,466 120,484
Operating profit 43 S | 50,253 2,738
Finance cost B & A AR (123) (306)
Profit before tax & B BT S ) 50,130 2,432
Income tax expense Frefim < 10 (15,356) (4,181)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREHEA(E1E) 34,774 (1,749)

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ 61E143AMMTHEKERE M BEIHREZH—FD ©
financial statements.

53



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E iy [ [ 4 Fil 45 8] 45 BR 2> 7]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
el ITL &

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z-—=F+_A=t+—HL=EE

2013 2012
==-= —E—_fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FERT T
Other comprehensive income H 2wk
Item that may be reclassified to ~ AJgERIEE 1575218
profit or loss
Currency translation difference BEWIEHR =5 (1,764) 4,586
Other comprehensive income FEEMEEWE (FREIE)
for the year, net of tax (1,764) 4,586
Total comprehensive income FEEHENERRE
for the year 33,010 2,837
Earnings/(loss) per share for FEARRAIRERE AEMN
profit attributable to wAZ BREF(EE)
the equity holders of the
Company for the year
— Basic and diluted — BREAREE
(HK cents per share) (AFRELFIR) 12 1.90 (0.11)
Dividends H& & 11 29,500 14,000

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ 61E143AMMTHEKERE M BEIHREZH—FD ©
financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
2= —E—_fF
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
HteE FHExT THET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B K RE 13 6,301 5,894
Intangible assets BB E 14 257 329
Deferred tax assets EEFIB & EE 20 413 438
6,971 6,661
Current assets REEE
Tax prepayments TREIA 567 1,742
Other assets and prepayments HihEE MTENRIE 15 4,973 8,662
Amounts due from ultimate JE UK B 42 HE A% A B FRIE
holding company 27 23 -
Amounts due from fellow JE 5 [R) FKBf BB A R 5RIE
subsidiaries 27 75 201
Derivative financial instruments TEemT A 16 56,594 36,571
Balances due from agents FEURR IR 4560 17 16,910 14,037
Cash and bank balances and Ve MIBITEBRIAR
client trust bank balances REEFLBRITER 18 483,880 340,132
Total current assets REEEAE 563,022 401,345
Total assets EEH#E 569,993 408,006
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRREE
Share capital N 23 20,000 100
Share premium 15 & B 166,928 56,991
Capital reserve N 24 171,892 171,892
Currency translation reserve f’fﬁ%E)@Lﬁﬁﬁ 4,883 6,647
Retained earnings/ REEF (R:TEE)
(accumulated losses) 18,396 (2,878)
Total equity R 382,099 232,752

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITE

< AR P A R

D | B4

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

far B ER AR

As at 31 December 2013

MZZE—=F+="H=+—H
2013 2012
—2—= —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Hiat FHET FET
Current liabilities REEE
Finance lease obligations Rl e AE 19 45 151
Current income tax liabilities BHAFT S & (& 3,068 328
Other payables and accrued EfhENZRIBRETAE
liabilities 21 12,189 15,247
Amounts due to fellow ANIEESIEPNGIE ¢
subsidiaries 27 312 698
Amounts due to ultimate holding  JEf &R A T FIE
company 27 - 3,683
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIT A 16 2,579 7,178
Clients’ balances =B 22 169,426 147,590
187,619 174,875
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Finance lease obligations BhATH &R 19 126 197
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 20 149 182
275 379
Total liabilities EE8E 187,894 175,254
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 569,993 408,006
Net current assets REBEEZFE 375,403 226,470
Total assets less current HEERMBAE
liabilities 382,374 233,131

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

19 March 2014

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
Anwl EER AR

As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
okza FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FHEB AR ZIEE 26 1 1
1 1
Current assets REEE
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTHEG 123,745 32,014
Amounts due from a subsidiary el — M B A R 2 A 27 65,907 23,252
Amounts due from ultimate e Sl NI BRI
holding company 27 12 -
Prepayments TR FRIE 675 4,990
Total current assets REBEEHAE 190,339 60,256
Total assets BEEHAE 190,340 60,257
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EZRas
Share capital R& 7R 23 20,000 100
Share premium f& 15 B 166,928 56,991
Retained earnings/ (RB&EF|), RtE1E
(accumulated losses) 1,335 (13,086)
Total equity A 188,263 44,005
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHI B A R IB 27 663 9,269
Other payables and accrued Hih et 8 ket aE
liabilities 21 1,414 6,983
Total liabilities sEeE 2,077 16,252
Total equity and liabilities ExRkEEHAE 190,340 60,257
Net current assets REEEFE 188,262 44,004
Total assets less current EEHABERABES
liabilities 188,263 44, 005

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ F61E143E MM EFENERE M BEIHREKH—FD ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

< AR P A R

=4
IO S B R
For the year ended 31 December 2013
B Z—=%+—_A=+—HI&EE
Retained
Currency earnings/
Share Share Capital translation (accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses) equity
EXEX  RERA/
Bx  RGEE  EXRE ffa (RiFR)  ERAE
Note HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
it Tan TEn Thn Tan ThR TEn
t 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-f-H = = 171,892 2,061 12,871 186,824
Proceeds from shares issued BIRGAETE 23 100 56,991 - - = 57,091
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (1,749) (1,749)
Other comprehensive income EEEMEENE
for the year - - - 4,586 - 4,586
Dividends RE 11 - - - - (14,000 (14,000)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-B-—FE+-fA=1-H 100 56,991 171,892 6,647 (2,878) 232,752
t 1 January 2013 W-E-—=%—-F—H 100 56,991 171,892 6,647 (2,878) 232,752
Comprehensive income 2E%E
Profit for the year EERR - - - - 34,774 34,774
Other comprehensive income EEAMEENE
for the year - - - (1,764) - (1,764)
100 56991 174892 4883 31,896 265762
Capitalisation issue BRI %S 28 16,467 (16,467) - - - -
Placing of new shares REHR 23 3,433 151,758 - - - 155191
Shares issue expenses 5 - (9,354) - - - (9,354)
Dividends RE 11 - (16,000) - - (13,500) (29,500)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-A=+-A 20,000 166,928 171,892 4,883 18,396 382,099
The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ 61E143AMMTHEKERE M BEIHREZH—FD ©

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HmaBlamaR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z-=F+-_A=+—HIL=FE

2013 2012
—E-Z=F “T——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$000
K TET FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& EBFEEELRE
Profit before tax B R R 50,130 2,432
Adjustments for: S
Depreciation and amortisation e sy 13 & 14 2,550 2,307
Interest income M EUWA (1,525) (1,571)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & B B 2 R s (19) -
Cash flows from operating activites &EELBHILLETHRERERE
before working capital changes 51,136 3,168
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BEATHER (Em),/ R
time deposits (28,506) 6,307
(Increase)/decrease in client trust REEEBITES (38M),/ W
bank balances (53,217) 19,238
Increase in balances due from agents  FEUAIE 458418 N (2,873) (3,411)
(Increase)/decrease in derivative FTHESBIA (32m),/ md
financial instruments (24,622) 12,685
Decrease/(increase) in other assets HiEERBAZTERD /(M)
and prepayments 3,836 (2,306)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due RS AR A R 5RE (32 0),/ R
from ultimate holding company (3,706) 18,351
Decrease in amounts due from L EE NSO
fellow subsidiaries 126 3,246
Decrease in amounts due to FERTR R I B A R ZUB R A
fellow subsidiaries (386) (431)
Increase/(decrease) in clients’ RE&HEM,/(RD)
balances 21,836 (15,505)
Decrease in other payables and H it e 008 M B A B A
accrued liabilities (3,058) (155)
Cash (used in)/generated from me (R FM5Re
operations (39,434) 41,187
Income tax paid BFEH (11,493) (10,200)
Net cash (used in)/generated from LEEE (FTA),/ B RLFE
operating activities (50,927) 30,987

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ 61E143AMMTHEKERE M BEIHREZH—FD ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
A BlamER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-—=F+-A=+—HALEE

2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz TERT BT
Cash flows from investing activities REZHFEHEESHE
Interest received B UFI 8 1,316 1,630
Purchase of property, plant and BENE BERIBENREVEE
equipment and intangible assets 13& 14 (2,978) (2,730)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEmRE K& EMEHE
equipment 19 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETHRESFE (1,643) (1,100)
Cash flows from financing activities REZEFEHERE
Net proceeds from issue of shares RAEITABRFIRER 28 155,192 57,091
Payment of transaction costs attributable %77 A% {7 FE{h 22 5 Bk AN 78
to issue of new shares (9,354) -
Repayment of finance lease obligations (&1 f &0 S &iE (94) (118)
Dividends paid BARE 11 (29,500) (21,000)
Net cash generated from financing MEEEEHE S FE
activities 116,244 35,973
Net increase in cash and cash BeRASEEMEMTE
equivalents 63,674 65,860
Cash and cash equivalents at FURE MRS EEY
beginning of year 248,650 178,052
Effect of foreign exchange rate Ex2H 258
changes, net (1,649) 4,738
Cash and cash equivalents at ERASRBEEEEY
end of year 18 310,675 248,650

The notes on pages 61 to 143 form part of these consolidated ~ 61E143AMMTHEKERE M BEIHREZH—FD ©
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION

1.1

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 9 November 2010 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 3 July 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other service.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

Reorganisation

In preparing for the listing of shares of the
Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
Company underwent a reorganisation, pursuant
to which the group companies owned by the
controlling shareholders were transferred to the
Company (“Reorganisation”). The reorganisation
involved the following:

(a) On 9 November 2010, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands by
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited.
On the same date, 100% equity interest was
transferred to Mr Li Zhi Da (“Mr Li").

1
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KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E iy [ [ 4 Fil 45 8] 45 BR 2> 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (continued)

(b)

On 8 April 2011, LXL Capital | Limited (“LXL
I”) was incorporated as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

On 8 April 2011, LXL Capital II' Limited
(“LXL "), LXL Capital Il Limited (“LXL 111")
and LXL Capital IV Limited (“LXL V") were
incorporated and each of them allotted and
issued 100 nil-paid shares to LXL .

On 4 May 2012, pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement:

(i) The entire issued share capital of the
Company was transferred from Mr Li
to KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited for a
consideration of HK$1.

(i) The Company acquired the entire
share capital of KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited (“KVBHK”)
from Mr Li and the estate of late Ms
Tsui Wang by crediting as fully paid
at par the 100 nil-paid LXL IV shares
allotted and issued to LXL | on 8 April
2011 (as mentioned in (c) above).

1
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (continued)

(iif)

The Company acquired the entire
share capital of KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited (“KVBNZ") from KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited by crediting
as fully paid at par the 100 nil-paid
LXL Il shares allotted and issued to
LXL | on 8 April 2011 (as mentioned
in (c) above).

The Company acquired the entire
share capital of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd
(“KVBAU”) from KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited by crediting as fully paid at
par the 100 nil-paid LXL Il shares
allotted and issued to LXL | on 8 April
2011 (as mentioned in (c) above).

Such transfers were completed by 7 May 2012.

1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

64

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

For the purpose of this report, the financial statements
of the Group has been prepared using the principles
of merger accounting, as prescribed in Hong Kong
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statements of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 have
been prepared on a consolidated basis and include
the financial statements of the companies under the
common control of the controlling shareholders and now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012. The consolidated balance
sheets of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
have been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the companies now comprising the Group as at these
dates, as if the current group structure had been in
existence as at these dates.

The net assets and results of the Group are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling
shareholders’ perspective.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the HKICPA. The financial statements has been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the

financial information are disclosed in Note 5.

Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to
2013 refer to the Group’s fiscal year ended, or the
date, as the context requires, 31 December 2013.

(a) Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2013 that is applicable to the
Group

Amendment to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’ requires entities to group items
presented in other comprehensive income
on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments). The Group
has disclosed the relevant information in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

3

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2013 that is applicable to the
Group (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 7, “Financial
instruments: Disclosures’ on asset and
liability offsetting”. These amendments
are as part of the International Accounting
Standards Board’s comprehensive
review of off balance sheet activities. The
amendments promote transparency in
the reporting of transfer transactions and
improve user’s understanding of the risk
exposures relating to transfers of financial
assets and the effect of those risks on
an entity’s financial position, particularly
those involving securitisation of financial
asset. The Group has disclosed relevant
information on financial asset and liability
offsetting. Refer to note 4.4.3 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

HKFRS 10
statements” replaces all of the guidance
on control and consolidation in HKAS
27, ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’, and HK(SIC)-12, ‘Consolidation
— special purpose entities’. The revised
definition of control under HKFRS 10 focuses
on the need to have both power and variable
returns before control is present. HKAS 27
is renamed ‘Separate financial statements’,
and it continues to be a standard dealing
solely with separate financial statements.
The existing guidance for separate financial
statements is unchanged. The adoption
of HKFRS 10 does not have any material
impact to the Group.

“Consolidated financial

3
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Newly effective standards and amended
standards for the financial year from 1
January 2013 that is applicable to the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in
other entities” includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, structured entities and other
off balance sheet vehicles. HKFRS 12 only
affects the disclosure but does not affect
the results and operations of the Group. The
Group has disclosed relevant information
in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurements”.
HKFRS 13 aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing
a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements, which are
largely aligned between HKFRSs and US
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP”), do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on
how it should be applied where its use
is already required or permitted by other
standards within HKFRSs or US GAAP.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 also results in
additional disclosures of financial assets
and financial liabilities as disclosed in Note
4.2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok T R I R

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not effective for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013
which are relevant to the Group but the
Group has not early adopted

Amendment to HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Presentation” on asset and
liability offsetting. These amendments
are to the application guidance in HKAS
32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’,
and clarify some of the requirements for
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities on the balance sheet. The Group
is considering the impact of the standard on
its application.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” is
the first standard issued as part of a
wider project to replace HKAS 39. The
standard is not applicable until 1 January
2015 but is available for early adoption.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes
two primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortised cost and fair
value. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. The guidance in HKAS
39 on impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting continues to apply. It is
expected that the adoption of this revised
standard will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and its
financial position.

Other HKFRSs that are applicable for the financial

year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 have no
significant impact on the Group.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Except for the Reorganisation which has been
described in Note 1 above, the Group applies
the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis,

recognises any non-controlling interest in the

the Group

acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

At the Company’s single entity level balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Consolidation (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income. The
Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the subsidiaries is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount in the statement of comprehensive
income.
Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an
entity. The Group has determined the Board of

Directors as its chief operating decision maker.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

(ii) income and expenses for each

consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated

at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold 10 years or over the
improvements lease term, whichever
is shorter
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. Assets that are subject
to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less

accumulated amortisation and impairment if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life (3 to 5 years) and assessed for
indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The

impairment whenever there is an
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment

at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S R M

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets
3.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of
trading; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be

settled more than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok B B A M

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EZEHEERME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (continued) 3.8 SWMEE (&)

3.8.2 Recognition and measurement 382 ERRIE

76

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date -
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are included directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and are reported as “leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any. The Group’s
receivables (including amounts due from
group companies) and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category.
Accounts receivables and amounts due
from group companies are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and
is reported as net interest income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Financial assets (continued)
3.8.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset classified as loans and receivables
is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such

as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’'s fair value using
observable market data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss at inception. These financial assets and
financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for
trading are those acquired or incurred principally
for the purposes of selling or repurchasing in
the short term. The Group does not classify any

derivatives as hedges in a hedging relationship.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in the “leveraged foreign
exchange and other trading income” in the period
in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash and cash equivalents available for the
disposition of the Group and exclude client trust
bank balances, and bank deposits held to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long
term basis are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment if any.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the liabilities are due to be settled or
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables

are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other
financial liabilities using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
they are extinguished — that is, when the obligation

is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed

as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Fund
“Scheme”) under

Mandatory Provident retirement
benefits scheme (the
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the

rules of the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible
to participate in KiwiSaver plan on a
voluntary basis. This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund only if employees
are making contribution to KiwiSaver plan.
The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in Australia, are required
to participate in employee superannuation
required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll

fund. This subsidiary is

costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become

payable in accordance with the rules of the
fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

The assets of the Scheme and other plans
as described above are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme and other
plans.

Annual leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, in which the bonus
scheme is at the discretion of the Group’s
Directors based on the Group performance
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or

where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated financial statements
in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders or directors where appropriate.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
position taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.18

(b)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial

statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so
that expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST,
where appropriate. The Group is not a registered
person in term of the Goods and Services Tax Act
1985 in New Zealand.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the
services have been rendered;
income, when the

(i) management fees

services have been rendered; and
(iii)  interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided
to corporate clients, in particular, those clients
engaged in money changing business for the
purpose of hedging their cash positions and
meeting settlement obligations. The Group is
rewarded by the spread between the price quoted
to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when
cash dealing transactions have been completed
by market makers with reference to prevailing
exchange rate.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EEEHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Leases 3.22 #HE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks HHAARBAAEENFEZRR KRG
and rewards of ownership are retained by the RHNHERER/KEHE - REK
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments EHE X NHRIE (MR EBEAR
made under operating leases (net of any incentives THEMESR)  BREKEERNA
received from the lessor), are charged to the profit EHMEAREBRNR -
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
The Group leases certain property, plant and AEBERETYWE: BEREKRK
equipment. Leases of property, plant and o AEBHERLTE2HFBEN
equipment where the Group has substantially all Bz R EROE - BE REER
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified HERARMAEMHE BEHEER
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised HERKRFEAEMEN A EE
at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value HEHENFIREMENREE R
of the leased property and the present value of the FER o
minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of HENHESEFTENRBERZ
finance charges, are included in finance lease % GFARERERE - FHEAEAES
obligation. Each lease payment is allocated NHREEBERRERZHEY# - 48
between the liability and finance charges. The BRI & ERENREE R BT
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance )\3'5/%@}%1 o BE R AR R B F
charges, are included in non-current liabilities. SDIRAERMEBRERP R Mﬁ
The interest element of the finance cost is charged EHERTEEEREEBETE
to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to MEE - BEMEHEES B%)\E’J%
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the ¥ BELRREREENSHAFH
remaining balance of the liability for each period. BB E R EETE o

The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of

the asset’s useful life and the lease term.




ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S R M

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 BEESHEERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

3.23 LARRAD B E 7 HY 3N

3.23 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from individuals as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the group. The fair value of the services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and

non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an individual of the
entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
individuals to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances individuals may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement period

and grant date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Share-based payments (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement,
equity.

with a corresponding adjustment to

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share

premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

in the parent entity accounts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks, control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are credit risk, market risk
(including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk)
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
objective is to enhance shareholder value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds in response
to changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk
management system in place to identify, analyse, assess
and manage risks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group

Risk Department under policies approved by the Group

audit, risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk

Department provides written principles for overall risk

management, as well as written policies covering specific

areas, such as mitigating credit risk, market risk, liquidity

risk, capital management risk and risk limits setting and

monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are

summarised below:

4.1

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from accounts receivable from
customers and counterparties, bank balances,
and other assets and receivables. After evaluating
the client’s risk profiles, the Group sets stop-out
levels to the clients. Once their equity drops to
the stop-out level the Group’s trading system
will automatically liquidate the client’s positions.
Without taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
assets. The existing debtors have no defaults in
the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks
and balances due from agents are held with major
financial institutions and management reviews the
banks and financial institutions’ creditworthiness on
a regular basis. The banks and financial institutions
are of high credit quality and substantially with

a rating of grade A or with long established
relationships. The credit risk associated with these
balances is deemed insignificant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Credit risk (continued)

The Group is also subject to credit risk relating
to other assets and receivables from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The
credit risk relating to other assets and receivables
from ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries is treated as any other receivables
in the normal course of business. The utilisation
of credit limits has been closely monitored on
a daily basis, taking into account the financial
position and past experience. The Group did not
experience any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties. The credit risk associated
with these balances is considered as low.

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk
before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event the counterparties fail
to perform their obligations as at the
balance sheet date, in relation to each
class of financial assets, is the carrying
amount of those assets as indicated in
the consolidated balance sheet. These
amounts represent the worst case scenario
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31
December 2013 and 2012, without taking

into account any collateral held or other

credit enhancements attached.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.1

Credit risk (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

o B S R M

cRRAKRERE (£)
41 FERK (&)

Maximum exposure to credit risk (a) KHEEHAGHAMEEREH
before collateral held or other credit HHSREEEREE (&)
enhancements (continued)
The carrying values of receivables and other ML B XTBEREEH
assets arising from the course of business JE WK TR I B h & EE AR TE{E
of the Group are as follows: LU
The Group EE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FBTT
Other assets Hib&E 3,420 3,096
Amounts due from ultimate JE W S AR Y AR A B IR
holding company 23 -
Amounts due from fellow N SN RO
subsidiaries 75 201
Derivative financial instruments #74 &8 T & 56,594 36,571
Balances due from agents JE USRI 45 5 16,910 14,037
Cash and bank balances and B& RRITHEERU R
client trust bank balances EEEFERITES 483,880 340,132
560,902 394,037
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ) R-ZE—=FK-ZF—=
maximum exposure of credit risk of the +=—A=+—8 ' ARQFFT
Company comprises the carrying amounts HENSEREERRBERE
of amounts due from ultimate holding W R A RIFRIE ~ B
company, amounts due from a subsidiary Ff J8 A B 30 IE R BR B K AR
and cash and bank balances on the balance RAEEBEBERMENES
sheets of the Company. RERITH R ©
None of the financial assets is either past (c) HESREEDIPIRE -

due or impaired.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 cREAKRER (&)
4.1  Credit risk (continued) 41  FEERR (B)

(d)  The following table breaks down the Group’s (d) T%M%EE%E%K%H’U
major credit exposure at their carrying FTEFERR  WiEHE=
amounts, as categorised by geographical g—:i&fg—ii‘?’:
region as of 31 December 2013 and 2012. ﬁ =+ —HHHEREES
The Group has allocated exposures to c REBIRBERZSHEF
regions based on the country of domicile of E’JPﬁEI*’\@EJ—WﬁE%iﬂ
its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by @ ZRFHEIDHEERR
geographical sectors is classified according et REERREIEZSE
to the location of counterparties after taking FREM T ADER ©

into account the transfer of risk.

The Group rEE
As at 31 December 2013 N-—ZEBE—=%+—-_A=+—H

Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong and other
Kong Kong regions Total
TABE
(RFEHE BN K
B EB) HittE Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$’000
THER TER THET THET

Other assets HEEE 2,659 761 - 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate JEM S R R A B 5UR

holding company - 23 - 23
Amounts due from fellow G GEING

subsidiaries 75 - - 75
Derivative financial instruments /T4 &g T A - 56,594 - 56,594
Balances due from agents FEUR 32 Ao - 16,910 - 16,910
Cash and bank balances and Be RIRITEHRIK

client trust bank balances RPEZRITER 218,999 195,226 69,655 483,880

Total st 221,733 269,514 69,655 560,902
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TREREE (&)
4.1  Credit risk (continued) 41 FERR (&)
(d)  (continued) (@ (&)
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=—H=1—H
Asia
Pacific
excluding Europe
Hong Hong  and other
Kong Kong regions Total
DAME
(~afE BOM &
BB B8) HfipE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Other assets HinEE 2,468 628 = 3,096
Amounts due from fellow L GEENGEE
subsidiaries 23 156 22 201
Derivative financial instruments T4 & TE - 36,571 - 36,571
Balances due from agents FEM I e = 14,037 = 14,037
Cash and bank balances and BE RRITEHIAR
client trust bank balances RPEERITER 134,816 134,152 71,164 340,132
Total et 137,307 185,544 71,186 394,037
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the REZE—=FR=_FT—_F
Company’s major credit exposure is within +=—A=+—8 " KREWKDE
Hong Kong region, except for the amounts K3 [ ) B — i BT /B8 2 R 3K
due from a subsidiary which were within HEIN  RARMEEZEFEER

Asia Pacific region. B RE BB o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Market risk

4.2.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from movements
in interest rates and the mismatch of fixed
and floating rates between funding and
investing activities. The Group is exposed
to material interest rate risk as the Group
invests all surplus funds in call accounts
with reputable banks and is susceptible to
movements in call interest rates. Interest
rate risk arises from unexpected changes in
interest rates that may result in an adverse
impact on the Group’s current and near
future performance. The Group has not used
any interest rate swaps nor forward interest
rate contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.

The Group
As at 31 December 2013

4

TRERE

B (#E)

4.2 AR
4.2.1 FZE@EME

A2 LB T BB M 3R OR B A K
KERRERDHEWETE R
FEN R AERCAAER - @R
AEERMERBRESRKRE
REERFRITHBAERP
I 538 17 KA R B 7
& PAKEEHELRNEX
% o MR ERIR B M E/
BINKE)  REBHB AL
B R D BRBEE D
M E - AEBIWARHBE
A= MR AR EH
EmEF R

AEE
R=F—=%51+=-A=t—H

Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FEAE BT %8 @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Assets BE
Other assets HinBE - - 3,420 3,420
Amounts due from ultimate e S UNGIERE]
holding company - - 23 23
Amounts due from fellow L GEEINGIERE
subsidiaries - - 75 75
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 &8 T A - - 56,594 56,594
Balances due from agents FEU R 32 A 2 1,100 - 15,810 16,910
Cash and bank balances and R RRITHBUAR
client trust bank balances KPP EERITER 316,700 157,046 10,134 483,880
Liabilities =15
Finance lease obligation AMEMREHRE - 171 - 171
Other payables Hib R A - - 10,585 10,585
Amounts due to fellow R RMBARFRE
subsidiaries - - 312 312
Derivative financial instruments 14 4$ @ T E - - 2,579 2,579
Clients’ balances LY - - 169,426 169,426
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERER (&)
4.2  Market risk (continued) 42 TWEHERAK (&)

4.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued) 4.2.1 FFEmE (&)

The Group

As at 31 December 2012

REE
RZZE——F+—-_A=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FEFE  EEAE gy 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL
Assets EE
Other assets HpEE - - 3,096 3,096
Amounts due from ultimate e NGIF
holding company - - - -
Amounts due from fellow GBI EUNGTE
subsidiaries - - 201 201
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4 4@ T A = = 36,571 36,571
Balances due from agents FEU R IR 4,754 - 9,283 14,037
Cash and bank balances and B4 RIRITERIAR
client trust bank balances REETRITES 262,397 21,082 56,6563 340,132
Liabilities =1

Finance lease obligation
Other payables
Amounts due to ultimate

MERERE
HiENFUR
N HEERARRA

348 = 348
= 14,735 14,735

holding company - - 3,683 3,683
Amounts due to fellow ENIEE N ENGIE R

subsidiaries - - 698 698
Derivative financial instruments {74 & @I A - - 7,178 7,178
Clients' balances X - ~ 147500 147,590

Based on the simulations performed and
with other variables held constant, the
profit before taxation for the year ended 31
December 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$3,178,000 (2012:
HK$2,672,000) should the interest rate
increase/decrease by 1%.

R PR R 52 2% 25 i HL i ] 4 X
RRFBIEGE - W ERE
=5/ T¥1%  BBEE-F
—=F+-_A=+—HI*F
ERBRT A E FIHEIE 00, R
4> 493,178,000 T (= &
—— 4 : 2,672,000/ 7T) °




KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E 72 B4

< AR P A R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o I R Bk

IIW

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Market risk (continued)

4.2.2 Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most
significant risk in leveraged foreign
exchange trading. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to New Zealand
dollars and Australian dollars. The Group will
suffer a loss if it fails to cover a client deal at
a better exchange rate. The Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client
trading performance. The risk is measured
by the use of sensitivity analysis and cash
flow forecasting. Specific risk limits are set
to measure and monitor foreign exchange
risk. Any excessive foreign exchange risks
are passed on to other financial institutions
through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on
the level of exposure by currency and in

aggregate for both overnight and intra-day
positions,
intra-day basis.

which are monitored on an

4

TRERE

B (#E)

4.2 THiGER (&)
4.2.2 SMEEE

b )% B) IR INERZ 5
FERBARER - NEEK
AR ARBREeREAREE
FrbE R 8) 2 2 B MAER
% o AREBHAT LAMARM T
NORTT R E 2 & EINE R,
2 o AN BR AL IR E B
KETEPRS @ AIBER
B - rAEEBEBREELRS
ENRFEGHNREFRS
FRIEIEINER R - BT
BB ASRES T RIS
mETRREREETE
FERBRS D AT E KB
EHNE R BR MK © ERIEAR
SINEE BB BIJ 3 18 B HL i & @b
BBETRIEREZ S
%o BEEHRRKEEAR
BB R BT ETA IR R R
KEFREREE - RNE A EM
KT LABSER o
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERER (&)
4.2 Market risk (continued) 42 TWERR (Z)
4.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 4.2.2 SERE (&)

The tables below summarise the Group’s TREAREENR _FT—=
exposure to foreign currency exchange FRZB-—ZF+_A=+
rate risk as at 31 December 2013 and —HEERAINE R o TR
2012. Included in the tables are the assets M A LA T F R R EE S AR
and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ WIRREEDBRNEERE
equivalent, categorised by the original f& °
currency.
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE-—=%+ZA=+—H

HK$ N> AUD  USD JPY  Others  Total
Bn AR A7 xn RE S it
HK$000  HK$'000  HK§'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 — HK$'000
Thn TEr  TER  TEn  TEr  TER  TEx

The Group rEE
Assets BE
Other assets EitAE 2,63 67 362 2 - 32 3420
Amounts due from ultimate  EREEERA A

holding company - - - 2 - - 2
Amounts due from fellow ERFZHBARFE

subsidiaries - - - 75 - - 75
Derivative financial instruments #7428 TA - 21,38 6,207 29,064 - - 56504
Balances due from agents ERRELEA 1 6 353 15800 155 586 16910
Cash and bank balances and ~ RERFTEANRE P

client trust bank balances RiTEH 141,986 22,511 35,806 264,076 4,439 15,062 483,880
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation HANEAE - - 1 - - - 1
Other payables HftENTE 3,029 1,307 9 5447 - 6 10,585
Amounts due to fellow ENRZNBARFE

subsidiaries - - - 312 - - 312
Derivative financial instruments  ATESBT & - 1,801 100 678 - - 2,579

Clients' balances EF&sH - 12983 22586 133,706 151 - 169426
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERERE (&)
4.2  Market risk (continued) 42 THIBER (&)
4.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 4.2.2 JMEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2012 RZZE——_F+_RA=+—H

HKS NZD  AUD USD Y Oters  Tota
Bn AEWT BT X HE B it
HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HKSO00D  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Ten Thn Thn  TRm  TRn  TRn  TEx

The Group 158
Assets EE
Other assets HEE 2,456 77 245 13 - 305 3,096
Amounts due from fellow EURZNBLAAFE

subsidiaries - - - 201 - - 201
Derlvative financial instruments  fi# &I A - 8,162 2516 25,893 - - 36571
Balances due from agents R - - 137 12047 - 593 14087
Cash and bank balances and ~ R& REFTHBINR

client trust bank balances EFERETRR 103764 22201 26771 176509 2599 8288 340,132
Liabilities 8f
Finance lease obligation HERERE - - 348 - - - 348
Other payables A ERFE 6,578 1499 988 5,639 - 3 14735
Amounts due to ultimate b S A UNI A

holding company - - - 3,683 - = 3,683
Amounts due to fellow EfRZNBARZE

subsidiaries - - - 698 - - 698
Derlvative financial instruments  f7#F &I A - 3528 16 3,639 - - 7178

Clients’ balances RR&R = 859% 10,089 128674 281 - 14759
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cREREE (&)
hizEE (&)
4.2.2 JMERE (Z)

TRINFR-ZB—=FRZ
T——F+ZHA=+—RH%N
BEE D % B %9 AN 5= B BR A5 Al
A 2

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4
4.2 Market risk (continued) 4.2
4.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the impact
on the Group’s profit before taxation to
movements in foreign exchange rate as at
31 December 2013 and 2012:

Movement

in foreign
currency 2013 2012
Foreign currency risk SN EE [ B HNERE —TB-—=F T —4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
AUD SRIT +/-5% +/-954 +/-978
JPY = +/-5% +/-222 +/-116
NZD TR T +/-6%  +/-1,391 +/-841

4.3  Liquidity risk 4.3 REBHEEE

The Group’s operations are subject to various
statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed
by the relevant authorities. The Group has put
in place a monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the
Group is managed by regularly monitoring current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and current
working capital to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term. The Group holds
sufficient cash and deposits on demand to repay

its liabilities.

AEENEBZAERBRENS
BEERBDESEZRMER - NEE
ERVEZERLS  BREFTHD
MEE T AR B ER AR M
Be METERER  AEEE
BEHETERNLBHRDESE
REBEEREIERR  BRAEHEH
HEBERANASRHERBENEESR
EARmEHEEHEERRDESTE
Ko REEFATENRE MEH
FREEREAEE -
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERER (&)
4.3  Liquidity risk (continued) 4.3 RBHRR (£)
4.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 4.3.1 BEHZIRIHE 5 1K HE
maturities BEnE
The table below presents the cash flows TREIAEER =T —=
payable by the Group under financial ERZE—ZF+ZA=T
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities —HEATEAINHERE
as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. The BEEETHEMNESR
amounts disclosed in the table are the B RRIBEBENEERE
contractual undiscounted cash flows. ARAHABRIRE o
As at 31 December 2013 R-B—=f+=-A=t+—H
Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over
imonth  months  months Years  5years Indefinite Total

-fAR -2=fif ZEt-fR -Z5f  BEF  ERY it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén fEn TEr TEn fEx  TER  TEn

The Group piS-1: |
Liabilities 8k
Finance lease obligation BERERE 5 9 42 131 - - 187
Other payables EfEfE 7,060 2,001 534 - - - 10,585
Amount due to fellow ENRZHBAAZE

subsidiaries 312 - - - - - 312
Clients’ balances RPL 169,426 - - - - - 169,42

7,708 2100 576 131 - - 180510

Derivative financial instruments 47448 T A 2,579 - - - - - 2,519

180,282 2,100 576 131 - - 183,089
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERER (&)
4.3  Liquidity risk (continued) 4.3 FHEHERRE (&)
4.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 4.3.1 BEXEHHE DR AME
maturities (continued) BenmE (&)
As at 31 December 2012 R-ZZE——F+=-H=1—~H
Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Qver
imonth  months  months Years  5years  Indefinite Total

—EAR -Z=fA =Et-@A -E1f BRF  ERH it
HK§000  HK§000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000
TRt ThEr TR  Thn  TEr TR TEn

The Group r&E
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation HAREHE 10 2 71 289 - - 390
Other payables AR 7,008 1814 5,693 = - - 1473%
Amount due to fellow ERFZHBARTE

subsidiaries 698 - - - - - 698
Amounts due to ultimate ERRAERARE

holding company 3,683 - - - = = 3,683
Clients' balances EP&H 147,590 - - - - - 14759

159209 183 5764 289 - - 167,09

Derivative financial instruments  $TE 28T A 7178 = = = = = 7,178

166,387 1,834 5,764 289 = - 174274




KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED | E iy [ [ 4 Fil 45 8] 45 BR 2> 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
m;f Ej‘%iﬁi%l}ﬁ‘ﬁf

cREREE (&)
tRMEEREBENANE
4.4.1 BARBEFENLHBTA

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4
4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 4.4

4.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The following table represents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
price in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable

market data.

TREINNEER  FE
B mEEAFET £ R
TH:BEIMRENDA
BEERHEN=EFEF -
RanEtENEBT AN
FREE SERIANRD
RERBEASHRRENER
REFERZREENES
ﬁﬁiiﬁ BRASAERD

A B

F1R (ZSFER)  NAE
AETIS R HRE CREH

B)TERARE-

2 AREFELRE
BhmsBEUem T ENR
B - ERAAERTEE
HEHBEEN2HEEX
[ & RN A B T 5 B
R

FR(RESER) - 2nE
ERGEXME - EME
ZH2HI TR AT BE
MBI -
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRREBER (&)
4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 4.4 THREEREBHAIAME (F)
(continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair 441 BAAEBHEN SR TAE
value (continued) (45)
As at 31 December 2013 R-—®—_=E+—A=+—FH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

14 2 F3R @ct
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000

TET TET TET TET

Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments 14 4@ T E - 56,594 - 56,594
Liabilities 2
Derivative financial instruments #1448 T & - 2,579 - 2,579
As at 31 December 2012 R=—F——F+-A=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF Fom ERF Bt

HK$000  HK$'000  HKEO000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Assets BE

Derivative financial instruments ~ #74£ 48 T & = 36,571 - 36,571
Liabilities 8

Derivative financial instruments T4 &g T A - 7,178 - 7,178
The fair value of financial instruments WHNERMISZEE 2 SR
that are not traded in an active market is TH AAnEHRABEER
determined by using valuation techniques. MEE - ZFMERMNRS
These valuation techniques maximise the 1 FA A 1S /O AT R B2 T 45 B
use of observable market data where it is B WERA MK AR A
available and rely as little as possible on EfEFT o WIRAREFE—
entity specific estimates. If all significant HITAMENEHEEZLE
inputs required to fair value an instrument HABRES - AJZEILAR
are observable, the instrument is included I AFE 28R o

in level 2.

103
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
4.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair

4.4.2

value (continued)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value.

There have been no significant transfers
between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Financial assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair
value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value are
not materially different from their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities.

4 ESHREKRE
4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

B (#E)

EMEENREBBNAARME (B)

BEARETEHZHITA
(%)

EHIIMES DR ERR
SHRNEREXRET - A
EENEEMERT TR
-

REE_T—=ZFK_F—
—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B 18R - B2k R FIR
B AR o

TRARENEBHZHBEE
RE®E

RZE—=FR_F—=F
+=—A=+—8 BaRE%E
EIIEARBEFENESH
BEMBEMIHARE
WEARBEEARAELE

BEXER-
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

4.4.2

4.4.3

Financial assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value (continued)

Balances due from agents and other
receivables include the contractual amounts
for settlement of trades other obligations
due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin
deposits received from clients for their
trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
(a) Financial assets

The following financial assets are

subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and

similar agreements.

o B S R M

4 TRARER (&8)
4.4 SRMEERABHNAIAAE (B)

4.4.2 FTEARBTENLHEE
REME (&)

P& U5 3 A B % EL A B WK
HERENASEN ARG
MRS EHNFBEREME
o

EF&REE—RBEEEH
BIEFRELRHIEB I
mEZHEFRX - HERHEE
BARBEHEEOR -

4.43 HHETHEEREHER

(a) ZHEE

MTERMEEXH
3 - AR BT —
R T HE R A
LE
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4

4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

4.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(a) Financial assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2013

ERERER (&)
4.4 CSRMEERABHNAAE(E)

443 HFTHMEERTHERE
(%)

(a)

g
Sar=

THEE

—E¢+:H

Related amounts not set

off in the balance sheet

TRREEEER
HRNEERE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts
financial ~ of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance  Financial  collateral Net
assets sheet sheet Instruments received Amount
HEE
BERA  EERE
BER  EHERDR RAM2IN BlRE
CREESE CHEEAE SRHEERE  SRIR gl R
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TERL TER TEn TER TEn
Derivative financial instruments — f74& &8 T & 67,549 (10,955) 56,504 - - 56,504
Total & 67,549 (10,955) 56,594 - - 56,504
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRARER (&8)
4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 44 SREEREEBNAARE (A)

(continued)

4.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 443 HEcAEERzAMERE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(a)  Financial assets (continued) (a) ZHEE (&)

As at 31 December 2012 R=ZZT—=—F+=A
=4=E

Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet

TARBESER
BmREE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities assets
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised inthe inthe Cash
financial balance balance  Financial  collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments received Amount
BEFN  AERE
BRA EHERR RAM2IH ElRe
SHARNT SNAELT CRAESE  GHIR gl et

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK§000  HKS'000
AL THL TAL AL TEL AL

Derivative financial instruments {7428 ITA 43816 (7,245) 36,571 - - 36,571

Total 3 43816 (T245) 36571 - - 35T
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRERERE (&)
4.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 4.4 CSREEREBHAIAME (F)
(continued)
4.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 443 HE e EERcHARE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(b)  Financial liabilities (b) ZHEEE
The following financial liabilities are LTe@maEXE
subject to offsetting, enforceable 85~ Al SR BB IT A —
master netting arrangements and FRREE R HE R
similar agreements. hEARR °
As at 31 December 2013 R=-ZB-=%+=A
=+-—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TANEERRR
i L B
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts
financial ~ of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance ~ Financial  collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet Instruments pledged Amount
HEE
8RN EERE
BER  EHERE RAF2IM 2R
tREMAR CHABAT SHERFE SRIA RiER 8
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR AR TR AR
Derivative financial instruments ~ fT4&&BT & (11,422) 8,843 (2,519) - - (2,579)
Total fax (11,422) 8,843 (2,579) - - (2,579)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRARER (&8)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 44 CREEREBEBENAAE (E)
(continued)
4.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial 443 HE e EERZAHMERE
liabilities (continued) (&)
(b)  Financial liabilities (continued) (b) THEE (&
As at 31 December 2012 R=ZZT—=—F+=A
=+—H
Related amounts not set
off in the balance sheet
TAREEAER
BnRETE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
Gross liabilities liabilities
amounts of setoff  presented
recognised in the in the Cash
financial balance balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
NEE
BEZRMN  AEBE
BER  BHEER RAMEIY BER
SRAGLE CHBELT SHARTE  SBIR HREAm 8
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T Thn Thn T
Derivative financial instruments {74 2RI E (15,025) 7,847 (7,178) - - (7,178)
Total 25 (15,025) 7847 (7,178) - - (7,178)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5

4.6

110

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities
(including cash and bank balances, client trust
bank balances, balance due from/to agents, other
assets, amounts due from/to ultimate holding
company, amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries,
client balances, balances due to banks, other
payables and finance lease obligation) in the
consolidated balance sheets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method as “loans and receivables” and “other
financial liabilities at amortised cost” except for
the derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are

carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital,
which is a broader concept than the “equity” on
the face of balance sheet, are:

o To
requirements under the Securities and

comply with the liquid capital

Futures Commission in Hong Kong,
Investments
and the
Securities Commission in New Zealand

Australian Securities and
Commission in Australia
for its subsidiaries which are licensed
corporations;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of its business.

4 SEEARER (&)

4.5

BROBENESHMTA

HREEERBERANZIESRE
ErEREE (BRESRRITE
7 BPERRITHES B E

NRIBES  HMEE B
& & & "’“T RIE -~ U E
NERMBARKIE - AR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4 TRREBER (&)
4.6 Capital management (continued) 4.6 EBEXEHE (£)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet REERGEHEANBELENT
date is shown below:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Total debt BB 483 4,729
Total equity R RE 382,099 232,752
Gearing ratio A& % 0.13% 2.0%
Total debt includes finance lease obligation, B EEDIER AT EAYE - FERARE R
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts &N B RRIE R RN R AR A Bl FROE o
due to ultimate holding company.
All licensed corporations within the Group complied RBE_E—=FRK_FB——_FIIFE
with their required liquid capital during the years AEBRNMEFEEZEEETERTES
ended 2013 and 2012. FHE ©
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5 EESHhET R AE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management of the Group has not come across any
significant areas where critical accounting estimates and

judgements are to be made.

Bt RASERENE - LABELRNK
HRXAEN ERERERITHE
HARKEMHNAEES -

AEEEEEHAREMNEATEELE
RERHEAT R HE o
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Board of
Directors. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of the other business segments. The Board of Directors
considers the business from a geographical and product
perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the
provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading services in Hong Kong and New Zealand;

(b) the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in
the provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange
trading services in New Zealand. Unleveraged
cash dealing services were provided to corporate
clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose
of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by
the spread between the price quoted to our clients
and the price offered by our market makers; and

(c)  theinvestment sales segments engage in provision
of sale and marketing functions to clients in New
Zealand and Australia.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there

was no change in the basis during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.
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DEHRE (&)

HE_ =N _"T——&+_A=+
—HIEFE  muREH A AERBREE
D EBERINT

6 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6
The segment information provided to the management
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_Z—=F+-A=+—HLEFE

New Hong New New
Zealand Kong  Zealand  Zealand  Australia
Margin ~ Margin Cash Investment Investment
dealing  dealing  dealing sales sales Unallocated Elimination Total
it} ) I i | it | Vi
RESRE REERS HENS REME  RERE AR He h
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TR TR TR TEx
Segment revenue and other income:  AElEREMMA -
Foreign exchange and other RENBEPHINER
trading income earned A2 HRA
from external customers 135,549 - 9,340 - - 2,159 - 147,048
Inter-segment sales PHHEE - 21,069 - 4,833 7,104 - (39,006) -
Segment revenue il 135,549 27,069 9,340 4,833 7,104 2,150 (39,006 147,048
Other income EfthA 24,903 - 108 67 14 4,579 - 961
Total revenue and other income Y REMMALE 160452 27,069 9,448 4,900 1,118 6,738  (39,006) 176,719
Segment profitf{loss) A/ (B8) 52,080 21,309 6,169 (4,058) (4,565) 6,738 77,673
Other staff costs EfETHRA (17,329)
Other unallocated administrative ERP AR RELRS
and operating expenses (10,220)
Profit before tax BREAIRA 50,130
Income tax expense FERAR (15,356)
Profit for the year EERH 34,774
Other segment information: AtAHER
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 83 39 49 83 471 1,545 - 2,550
Finance cost BERK 100 - 7 - - 16 - 123
113
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6 2 EEHE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE_ZT——F+_A=1+—HIFE
New Hong New New
Zealand Kong  Zealand  Zealand  Australia
Margin Margin Cash Investment ~ Investment
dealing  dealing  dealing sales sales  Unallocated Elimination Total
il | B il i 2N
REERS REERS BERsH REHE REWE AR o gt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T Thn Thn Thn T Thn T Thn
Segment revenue and other income: 2 EHUHEREMMA :
Foreign exchange and other RENSRPIIMNER
trading income earned AR AMA
from external customers 86,632 120 11,045 - - (1,536) - 96,261
Inter-segment sales AHREE - 414 = 2,851 5,862 - (32854) =
Segment revenue FHkE 86,632 24,261 11,045 2,851 5,862 (1536)  (32,854) 96,261
Qther income EflA 21584 - 286 243 399 4,449 - 2691
Total revenue and other income Wa REBNALE 108216 24261 11,331 3,094 6,261 2013 (32,854) 123222
Segment profitf(loss) HEEH / (BR) 15,069 21,793 6,232 (392)  (6,585) 2,913 39,020
Other staff costs EMETHRA (17,406)
Other unallocated administrative EAARTRREE S
and operating expenses (19,182)
Profit before tax e 2432
Income tax expense SR (4,181)
Loss for the year ERBE (1,749)
Other segment information: By nebas
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 46 31 b1 7 573 1,519 - 2307
Finance cost HERA 30 - 71 - - 205 306
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in the Hong Kong. The majority
of the Group’s income from external customers is derived
from its operations in New Zealand. The result of its
income from external customers in New Zealand and
others is as follows:

o B S R M

DEERE (&)

RARIHERES - REBRBINBEFH
WAKREDHREHRATIRAOCE R -
Hok\ A vam R E MR AN R F B Uk
AZEEWT -

2013 2012

—E-=F —T—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FHETT

New Zealand 4t 7Y 147,048 96,141
Others Eiih - 120
147,048 96,261

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding financial
assets and deferred tax assets) are as follows:

HERDEE (TEESBEE BT
HEE) 2T

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Hong Kong a5 4,365 4,564
New Zealand AT ES 1,579 834
Others Hih 614 825
6,558 6,223

None of the external customers contributes more than
10% of the Group’s trading income individually in the
respective years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not
disclosed as this information is not presented to the
Board of Directors as they do not assess performance
of reportable segments using information on assets and
liabilities.

MEINFEFPEREEFEARERSH I
ABI10% A E ©

HREFSVECRAREENAEBNE
PSR S DR RRE - WEFENL
EERTEFTS AMLEREABO N
BEERABEBENER -
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7 OTHER INCOME 7 H A
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Provision of management services REEER® (Hi727(a)i)
(Note 27(a)(i)) 2,508 7,916
Fees and commission income R RESBA 26,499 22,301
Interest income T 2 UZA 1,525 1,571
Exchange losses, net [N AR B8 (1,371) (5,343)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & EE B E 2 Was 19
Others Efb 491 516
29,671 26,961
8 STAFF COSTS 8 BT
2013 2012
—E—= —T—C—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Staff costs (Note 25): BIRA (ftiF25)
Salaries and allowances T & KR 29,978 28,595
Pension scheme contributions RIRNEFT B 841 937
30,819 29,5632
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 9

TBRHEMEERT

EXPENSES
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHTT
Management fees paid to ultimate SR FREERARINERE
holding company (Note 27(a)(iii)) (Htat27(a) i) 661 2,543
Management fees paid to fellow SN TFREMBARNEEREE
subsidiaries (Note 27(a)(iii)) (Btat27(a) (i) 328 82
Other office occupation expenses HhEsrERARX 1,618 1,541
Auditor’s remuneration % HE B < 2,150 2,865
Information services expenses BHREFH 3,251 3,690
Professional and consultancy fee HERLAE 8,109 14,287
Repair and maintenance wERkgE (BERGERE)
(including system maintenance) 598 623
Marketing, advertising and MEHE  EEhEERAX
promotion expenses 4,424 2,511
Travelling expenses =IRE 2,412 2,033
Entertainment expenses R B e B & 1,009 1,030
Others HAith 4,896 2,859
29,456 34,064
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10

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FfEBAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BBNERTREE B AR R
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit during the year. 8 H A 16.5% B B K ST IR B © 18 INaE F
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the MBI AN F E e E RS A AR &
estimated assessable profit during the year at the rates BEERERZFBITHOREFE - RIEE
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group RS - RS B TR R SORIMN A
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are SRS D B#228% K 30% KT T & o
charged at a tax rate of 28% in New Zealand and 30%
in Australia in accordance with the local tax authorities.
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Current tax: BVERR A -
Charge for the year FETH 15,412 4,293
Over-provision in prior year E BB (30) (371)
Deferred tax: RIERIA
(Credit)/charge for the year (Note 20) [ (5t A),/ 1% (#1:£20) (26) 259
Income tax expense FriSHif X 15,356 4,181
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10 FfEHMAxX (&)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before income tax R AT 50,130 2,432
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate 12&E B AT R ERTIE 8,271 401
Effect of different taxation rates HEMBRNRERENTE
in other countries 5,835 665
Income not subject to tax AR (17,883) (9,007)
Expenses not deductible for tax LR 19,131 11,487
Temporary differences not recognised RIEREREFIEZE%E 32 433
Over-provision in prior year KBRS (30) (371)
Tax losses transferred to EHRE-FRRMER AN
a fellow subsidiary FRIAE 12 - 573
Income tax expense FriS i 15,356 4,181
A subsidiary of the Company had implemented the tax AR M EA B ERRMNE BTG
consolidation legislation in Australia, and was under the &% - EERBE AR ANR RZHEB
same tax consolidation group with the fellow subsidiaries NEBHEBAREEEER - HEEEEE
in the same tax jurisdiction. The tax consolidated group ERX—HRERBGASEATZHER
lodged a single income tax return on behalf of all entities WEBEBAENRERTIE HEReEEE =
under the tax consolidated group as a whole. The tax T-_FHA B

consolidation group was dissolved since 1 May 2012.
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DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, dividends of
HK$14,000,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 were declared and paid by the Company to the then
shareholders.

On 21 May 2013 and 3 June 2013, the Company had
declared a special dividend of HK$1 and HK$0.6 per
ordinary share based on the outstanding shares at the
respective dates of those meetings. The total special
dividends of HK$16,000,000 were paid to the then
shareholders out of share premium.

The Board of the Company resolved to declare a third
quarterly dividend of HK$0.675 cents per ordinary share.
The dividend was distributed on 3 December 2013 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company as at the
close of business on 27 November 2013. A total of
HK$13,500,000 was paid to the then shareholders out of
retained earnings.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK$0.5 cents per ordinary share, amounting to
a total dividend of HK$10,000,000 is recommended at
the Board of Directors meeting on 19 March 2014. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2013 is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12 SRER (FHE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing BREREF /(BE) BAArRERE
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the AEREF](B1R) BRUARAFERAE
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary BT ERARE INE BT E -

shares deemed to be in issue during the year.

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FABT
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AR ERFE ARG

holders of the Company wmA (EE) 34,774 (1,749)
Weighted average number of ordinary 1% /& 277 @A AY HNHE 35 2%

shares deemed to be in issue 1,827,857,164 1,597,495,177
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXRREF (EE) (BL)

(HK cents) 1.90 (0.11)
The diluted earnings per share for the respective years REBFE - AR RN EE R EEE
are the same as basic earnings per share as there are no ez LR WERESANEGRE
dilutive ordinary shares. The basic and diluted earnings REFER - i EEBERMETNZ2E
per share as presented on the consolidated statement & EE A T 58 2 ) I £2 51 M B9 5E23(d) AT
of comprehensive income have taken into account the M7 RHEBE T

capitalisation issue as described in Note 23(d).
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and  Computer Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment improvements vehicles Total
BE
EERRE ENlFRE HE#E AE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THT THL
As at 1 January 2012 RZZ——4%—-H—H
Cost A 7,596 8,441 7,710 1,584 25,331
Accumulated depreciation ZE (6,259) (7,799) (4,476) (1,212) (19,746)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 1,337 642 3,234 372 5,585
For the year ended BEZZ——F
31 December 2012 +-A=+—-BItFE
Opening net carrying amount  E#IEEFE 1,337 642 3,234 372 5,585
Exchange adjustments BE % 25 10 17 6 58
Additions NE 457 500 757 764 2,478
Depreciation e (509) (385) (1,108) (225) (2,227)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREEE(E 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——-F
+-A=+-H
Cost KA 8,285 9,065 8,631 2,420 28,401
Accumulated depreciation ZINE (6,975) (8,298) (5,731) (1,503) (22,507)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
For the year ended BEZZ—=F
31 December 2013 +-A=t+—-BItHFE
Opening net carrying amount S 18R EH(E 1,310 767 2,900 917 5,894
Exchange adjustments BE 8 (12) (10) (19) (32) (73)
Additions NE 740 994 231 946 2,911
Depreciation e (502) (422) (1,192) (315) (2,431)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EREEEE 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-A=+-H
Cost B AR 8,577 9,366 8,484 3,061 29,488
Accumulated depreciation ZNE (7,041) (8,037) (6,564) (1,545) (23,187)
Net carrying amount RS E 1,536 1,329 1,920 1,516 6,301
122



ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B S R M

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 EREEE

Computer
software
B RSB
HK$’000
FABT
As at 1 January 2012 R=_ZF——F—H—H
Cost %N 6,115
Accumulated amortisation RETE Y (5,998)
Net carrying amount FREVFE 117
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BHE-_ZT——Ft+-_A=+—HILFE
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 117
Exchange adjustments FE H A X 2
Additions = 290
Amortisation BEGH (80)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 329
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H
Cost [DEN 6,636
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (6,307)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 329
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BHE_Z—=F+_A=+—HItFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 329
Exchange adjustments ME H, 38 B 1
Additions NE 46
Amortisation By (119)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 257
As at 31 December 2013 R-B—=%F+-_B=+—H
Cost B AR 6,522
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (6,265)
Net carrying amount REFE 257
123
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15 OTHER ASSETS AND PREPAYMENTS 15 HthEERBENRE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Rental, utility and other receivables e 2% & E b fE U sk 3,167 3,052
Prepayments TERT IR 1,553 5,566
Others Hih 253 44
Total st 4,973 8,662
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets AEBHEMEEMNREBESEL A A EMR
approximate to their fair values. A o
16 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 16 fTE€mI A
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Current assets REBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts  $749MNE A % 56,594 36,571
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative foreign exchange contracts  $749MNE A % (2,579) (7,178)
Total e 54,015 29,393
The Group has trades in foreign currencies through its REBBBEINSREBESR D EBEITI
foreign currency margin trading business. In order to XG5  BREASEBETZER LS
protect against exchange rate movements, the Group has 2 REBEEEARRITEI L ZIBINE K
entered into a number of foreign exchange and forward REARZ G A IR H ONEE [ b j R 5B o
transactions with the Group’s bankers to manage its net
foreign currency exposure.
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward RZE—=Z=Fk_FT——F+_-_A=
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2013 and +T—H HATFEERHINESG OB E
2012 are HK$2,584,207,000 and HK$1,892,205,000 &K~ € 8 D 5l /2,584,207,000% T &
respectively. 1,892,205,000/8 7T °
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BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 17 RERREER
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —ET——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balances due from: e AL e
- securities agents — BHNRE 16,910 14,037

The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from
agents approximate to their fair values. The balances
due from agents are current in nature and ageing within
30 days.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT 18
TRUST BANK BALANCES

AEBRKKRESEHNERAEEEAAE
BE - REREEHRBREMEE - RS
BOKRAR °

RAERBITERUREFEERTER

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FHETT

Cash and bank balances H& MIRTTH# R 201,926 243,493
Fixed deposits with banks #R1TE HATF K 157,046 24,948
Client trust bank balances HPEEEIRITAR 124,908 71,691
483,880 340,132

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its
own obligations in the ordinary course of business,
and therefore they are not included as cash and cash

equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

AEBNERESREEBREERREL
RP - UREEPRE —REKRHHF
R REETAPREFNERFEHESB
FNAREXEBERTNES - BHLZFR
A EA AR REXTIMERE RS
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18

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT
TRUST BANK BALANCES (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, fixed deposits of
HK$45,101,000 and HK$13,942,000 respectively are
pledged to banks for banking facilities. No overdraft
facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December
2013 and 2012. Bank deposits of HK$3,196,000 and
HK$5,849,000 are collateral deposits by the Group
placed with market makers as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 respectively.

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow
statements, cash and cash equivalents comprises of the

18

RERBITERUAREFETRITELR
(%)

R =R T —F+_-_A=+—
H - 45,101,0007% 7T 513,942,000/ 7T
HEBER D B IRITE B FIRT -
R-TE—=FR - FT——F+-A=+—
B AEEMEHATMAELTE - BT
3£3,196,0007% 7t 15,849,000/ 7T & A &
BEARR T —=FRk=_F—Z=-F+=A4
=T+ —HRMEHRTFENERER -

A RERERMNE RELRSEE
YMEEATEIA

following:

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances He RIR1T48% 201,926 243,493

Fixed deposits with bank with original  REJR =18 A A Z|HIH
maturity within three months RITEBFER 108,749 5,157
310,675 248,650
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FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to

19 ®BMERERE

HEABER L RHEEERMWIEM -

the lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default. BHEEANSFMHN  ZEFEMNSESETAE
A
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Gross finance lease liabilities BEHEaERE
— minimum lease payments — &EBEERK
Not later than 1 year —FR 56 173
Later than 1 year and no later —FBEAFA
than 5 years 131 217
187 390
Future finance charges on BEHEMNRIRBERZ
finance leases (16) (42)
Present value of finance lease liabilities Et&HEE EHE 171 348
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: REHEEERENT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FABT
Not later than 1 year —F R 45 151
Later than 1 year and no later —FREAFA
than five years 126 197
171 348

The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5

years and ownership of the assets lie within the Group. BREEAEEMEA -

AEBERBEIAIFHENRERE HELE
ATHEE HENSK=Z=RF MEEM
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION 20 EERL IR
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BEFREEE (AR HEZBHMRAL
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the EEEAGBRA - MRFANEBNT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total
EERF e HttERMtES HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHT FAET
At 1 January 2012 R-ZT——%—F—H 388 (154) 258 492
Exchange adjustments PE i, 17 (2) 8 23
(Charge)/credit for the year FR ($BR),FtA (296) (26) 63 (259)
At 31 December 2012 R_TE—_F
+=—A=+—H 109 (182) 329 256
At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=%—HA—H 109 (182) 329 256
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A (11) 13 (20) (18)
(Charge)/credit for the year ER (), FFA 67 20 (61) 26
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=—B=+—H 165 (149) 248 264
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DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an
individual entity basis when there is a legal right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relates to the same authority.
The following amounts, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction,
are as follows:

20

o B S R M

ERERIE ()

ERAERN AN RS E REE K
HABEE MELEHREYRE—#E
B BRI S ERDEARMBEERAEELR
B RERRGEREER AN SRR
(Y mat R HAEER) FIEAT -

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T TT
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 413 438
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIEE E (149) (182)
264 256

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the WHER A NS IEERELETIBEE ¢

following:

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Unused tax losses RB)FAFIEEE 975 1,326
975 1,326

Deferred tax assets are not recognised as it is not
probable that related tax assets will be utilised in the

foreseeable future. These losses have no expiry date.

BN BRRIEEET A LR Al 18 R 2R &
B WEEHAREEREER - ZFE
By EEmEH -
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 20 EEBIR (8)
2013 2012
—E—-= —_F—
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered RETIBE E
after more than twelve months (BB 12(E A& E) 413 438
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled FRIERIEE E
after more than twelve months (EB@121E A& 1T) (149) (182)
264 256
21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 21 HttEAREBEREFAEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
The Group KEE
Accrued rental benefit BT & Fe 648 1,002
Accruals EETE A 4,146 5,612
Commission payable RS 5,038 3,139
Employee entitlements EE#= 1,604 512
Temporary deposits from clients B RERER - 413
Other payables H i FE ST FRIE 753 4,569
12,189 15,247
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FHBT FET
The Company ¥iNNC|
Accruals s &R 1,414 3,332
Other payables H fth FE A FRIE - 3,651
1,414 6,983
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s ZNE [ Jo 2N A ) H A FE ST RRIE A BR T 58 B
other payables approximate to their fair values. HAREHES -
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22 CLIENTS’ BALANCES 22 EF#ERR
The balances represent margin deposits received from REEBREN ER X AR ETEES
clients for their trading activities under normal course BWMEFHRBLTH - BREFEEELR
of business. The carrying amounts approximate to their nERE
fair values.
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 [
2013 2012
—E-=F — T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHTT
Authorised: EE
4,000,000,000 (31 December 2012: 4,000,000,000% (=& ——4
4,000,000,000) ordinary shares +=—A=+—8:
of HK$0.01 each (note(c)) 4,000,000,000/%)
BHR0.01BTTH EBAR
(MteE(c)) 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRBRE -
2,000,000,000 (31 December 2012: 2,000,000,000/% (=ZF— =4
10,000,000) ordinary shares +=—RA=+—§8":
of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000/ )
HR%0.01/ B TT A E B 20,000 100
The movements in issued share capital were as follows: BIRAEHBERAOT ¢
Number
of shares Issued
in issue share capital
ERTROHE ERITRAE
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2012 (note(a)) R—E——F—H—H
(Hizt(a)) 1 -
Issue of shares to shareholders (note(b)) MR R ETIR G (BT (b)) 9,999,999 100
As at 31 December 2012 and RZE——F+-_fA=+—HxK
1 January 2013 “E-=ZF—H—H 10,000,000 100
Capitalisation issue (note(d)) BB AT (B2 () 1,646,655,000 16,467
Placing of new shares (note(e)) REE (Hit(e)) 343,345,000 3,433
As at 31 December 2013 RZB—=F+-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
131
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23

132

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 9 November
2010 with an initial authorised share capital of
HK$10,000 divided into 1,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each. On the date of
incorporation, 1 ordinary share was issued to Mr Li.

On 17 May 2012, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$10,000
divided into 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each
to HK$1,000,000 divided into 100,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, the
Company issued 9,054,399 shares at par to KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company, and 945,600 shares at a consideration of
HK$57,000,000. The ordinary shares issued have
the same rights as the other shares in issue.

On 18 December 2012, the authorised share
capital of the Company was further increased to
HK$40,000,000 divided into 4,000,000,000 shares
by the creation of an additional 3,900,000,000
shares, each ranking pari passu in all aspect with
the existing issued shares.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by
the shareholders on 3 June 2013, the directors
were authorised to allot and issue a total of
1,646,655,000 shares by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$16,466,550 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
1,646,655,000 shares for allotment and issue to
the shareholders in proportion to their respective
shareholdings.

On 3 July 2013, 343,345,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at premium at
an issue price of HK$0.452 each by way of the
placing.

23

RA (&)

(a)

RARRR=ZZT—ZF+—ANBF
fit A% 32 - #)460% 7€ AR 7K /10,000
BT+ 9 ¥ A&1,000,0000% & %
BO0.01B AR - Rtz B
B 1IREBREBEITTRRA -

RZZE——FHAA+tH " ARF
#95% FE IR AN R 10,0008 7T (2 1 &
1,000,000/% & % E {50.017% 7T /Y
B% #3) # hn =1,000,000% 7T (5
# £100,000,0004% &F A% M {80.01
BILHARM) c A—AH « AR A%
M {8 3% 179,054,3990% f& 15 F fix 4%
= & A FIKVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited & LA57,000,0007% JT £ X
{E317945,6000% f& fp B BT L
AR B b B 21T AR (0 B B AH [E 4
F o

RZBE——F+=-A+/1\B ' &A
7] 7 i@ 58 S 4 £%:3,900,000,000%
B (FIRRMDERAH ERER
EETRNEERFMA) - #E
B H% 7R #E — 27 42 1 240,000,000
7 7T (9 #F £4,000,000,0000% A%

) o

BERER-_ZE—=F,A=H
AAMEARER EFERE
12 R AR D % (B R 8 E BR &
16,466,550 7T 1 78 & 28 LABD 2% 2
217 A& £1,646,655,0000% % 15
FERBZEFRBARZEEHRE
& 1,646,655,0000% % 15+ LA %
B B R & B 8RR 1 1A 12 S5 A
BREBETHEBARG -

RZZE—=F+tHA=H ' ARAIA
Bl & 75 2420w B B 1R0.4528 TT &Y
B% 17 {8 ¥+ 17343,345,0000% & & @
E0.01 B TH iR °
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24 CAPITAL RESERVE 24 BEXR#E
The balance represents the difference between the book ZAERRTEKVBAI R - KVBRIM RKVBH
value of the net assets of KVB NZ, KVB AU and KVB HK BEEFEMREMEELXL I LXL 11Z
over the par value of the shares issued by LXL II, LXL Il LXL IVAARBRZEWE QA M1
and LXL IV in exchange for these subsidiaries as if the MEOEEBEZMHERE - HOREEERE
current group structure had been in existence since 1 B-Z——&—H—AR—EfFE-

January 2011.

25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 EELRSACTEHEN#HS

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments a) E=Ms
Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the AEEHE_Z—=FK_T——
Company by the Group during the years ended F+tA=+—HIEFEREARF
31 December 2013 and 2012. BEEYNEAEME -
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_F-=%+-"A=t+—-HL
R
Employer’s
Salary contribution Dis-

Director and other to pension cretionary Other

Name of director - fee  benefits scheme bonuses benefits Total
ek ExE#Re
Ezne HtEA  HEHR BERL  HtEd ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TET TER TEx TERT

Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr Liu Stefan AE L. 120 374 15 365 240 1,114
Mr Ng Chee Hung Frederick —~ RifR%EA 120 787 15 393 - 1,315
Non-executive Directors: EHTES :
Mr Li Zhi Da FEkE 60 - - - - 60
Mr Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory

McCoy4t 60 - - 69 - 129

Independent Non-executive ~ BV EHITES :

Directors:
Ms Zhao Guixin HEBLT 120 - - - - 120
Mr Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus
Keyserft & 120 - - - - 120
Mr Lin Wenhul X B %L 120 - - - - 120
720 1,161 30 827 240 2,978
133
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 EBKREREEENME &)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=EM= (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——+-HA=+—HLt
FE
Employer’s
Salary  contribution Dis-
Director and other  to pension  cretionary Other
Name of director ESfha fee  benefits scheme  bonuses  benefits Total

Fek EIEAE
EX0e  HtRM  HEHR WRRL  EuEd st
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL  ThAx TAL Thrn Térn  TiExn

Executive Directors: YITES
Mr Liu Stefan B RE 120 444 14 882 318 1,778
Mr Ng Chee Hung Frederick ~ RiigEA4 120 788 14 - - 922
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr Li Zhi Da FERE 60 - - = = 60
Mr Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory

McCoy %t & 60 568 - - - 628

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES :

Directors:

Ms Zhao Guixin BEELL 120 - - - - 120
Mr Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus

Keyserst & 120 - - - - 120
Mr Lin Wenhui MR E 120 - - - - 120
Mr Ba Shusong (note) BERESE (A7) 76 = - - - 76

796 1,800 28 882 318 3,824
Note: Mr. Ba Shusong has tendered his resignation et - BERELECEREHZ =
from 20 August 2012. E——FNNAZFHEER -

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and HE-_T—=FRk-F——-F+=ZA=+
2012, no directors of the Group waived any —BIEFE  BEAEEESHETA M
emoluments and no emolument was paid to any T BXEEYENME FEMES -
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon YER AR & B Sl fn A B B SR B Sk (E A B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of BHE o
office.
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 EERSREEENME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEREFAL
The five highest paid employees during the years HE-T=FR-F_F1=
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 included A=T—BLFE LARSHE
one and two directors respectively, details of BopBE—ERmEEs  HM
whose remuneration are set out in Note 25(a) SR BN £ E25(a) - Kok
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining FEERBHEERBE—F =
non-directors, highest paid employees during the FR-F-—F+-A=+—HI
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as FEOMSFBRIIMT -
follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FHTT
Salary and commission e kMBS 3,708 3,280
Employer’s contribution to RN EFHEIMER
pension scheme 144 154
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAT 676 =
4,528 3,434

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

BHEZZ—=FR-_FT——F+=
A=+—BLFE  BEEZZA
TS IEBMAREB R MA
I B0 SN Sk VE A R Bk v (S o
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25 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 25 ESREREEENME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) HEBEBFHAL (E)
The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of AEEZESHFAL (BRESIN) M
the Group other than the directors fall within the M A DA TS0 0

following bands:

2013 2012
—E-=F =FE==
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Emolument bands 20 )=
— HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 — 078752 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1,000,001 LE
1,500,000/8 75 4 1
- HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1,500,001 LE
2,000,000/ 7T - 1
— HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 2,000,001 LE
2,500,000/ 7T - -
26 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 26 R—ENB AR ZRE
The Company PN
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FET T IT
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBATZKRE
Investments, at cost: & R

Unlisted shares R D 1 1
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

As at the date of the report, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

Company name

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

BENEEER

Principal activities
and place of operation

Issued
share capital

26 R-ENBARAZIRE @)
RBERH - ARRR TIINERBHES

Equity
interest held

SR AR L3t B K A A
AR EH REEERER TEXBREEBE BERITRAE  RENRE
LXL Capital | Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (direct)
LXL Capital | Limited EBELHE REZR RBELES 100%7T 100% Azt
BRRA (B#&)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand  New Zealand, Provision of leveraged NZ$10,862,083 100%
Limited Limited liability company foreign exchange (indirect)
and other trading services,
New Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand ~ #7E# + HRAF REERAINE 10,862,083 100%
Limited PEGET )N il (B#%)
il il |
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited Australia, Provision of sales service, AU$1,050,010 100%
Limited liability company Australia (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited 2 * BRAR] REHERS - BN 1,050,01027T 100%
(%)
KVB Kunlun International ~ Hong Kong, Provision of management HK$100,000,000 100%
(HK) Limited Limited liability company ~ services and leveraged (indirect)
foreign exchange trading
services, Hong Kong
EmBR () BRAR & ARARF RALERRY JER 100,000,000/7T 100%
SNER 5 FRTE - BB (F#%)
LXL Capital Il Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100% Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital Il Limited EBRUHS - REER ABELES 1003 7T 100% Afat1
BRRA (%)
LXL Capital Il Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital Il Limited RBEEIES - RELRR  RBREAHS 1003 7T 100%  Afit1
BRAT (f#&)
LXL Capital IV Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital IV Limited EBRAME - BRERE RBRKHEE 100% 7T 100% Azt
BRAR] (F#%)
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27

138

S5 A B

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Company name

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

26

Principal activities
and place of operation

R—ENBARZRE (&)

Equity
interest held

Issued
share capital

aEff B St B K A A
RNEER REEERER TEXBREEHE BRTRE  RBAENKRE
LXL Capital IX Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital IX Limited EERTES REZK REEREHS 100%7T 100% izt
BRAF (F#)
LXL Capital VIII Limited British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
LXL Capital VIll Limited ~ ®EBREZEHE BRERR RBREIHES 100 7T 100%  Afst1
BRAF (F#)
York Castle Development  British Virgin Island, Investment holding, US$100 100%  Note 1
Limited Limited liability company British Virgin Island (indirect)
York Castle Development  REEZHS - RERK  RBRIES 100%7T 100%  Afat1
Limited BB (F#)
Yorkastle Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding, HK$1,000,000 100%  Note 2
Limited liability company Hong Kong (indirect)
Yorkastle Capital Limited &% * BRA 7 REER  BE 1,000,000/ 7T 100% M2
(%)

Note 1:

No audited financial statements have been prepared

as these companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction

which does not have any statutory audit requirements.

Note 2:

No audited financial statements have been prepared

as the company is newly incorporated during the year

and has no operation during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

27

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common

control.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related
parties, net amount is presented when the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised

amounts, and intends to settle on a net basis.

WIEET : IR ZFE R AIEL A 7 B9 ADZE #E 2 I8 4
ERVEEFEERHE » A RIAEF R
B -

Wiat2 : ARA D A BRAFREF A MA T AR
RFRWAEL L ARG TR
B

BB RS
W—T B N E R MRER S — Tk
MBRRERR LB Z— T REEARE
N BHEBARE - 85X KREIE
DINER o)

AWK BB T AREESERTE
AEBARGEARGEHEC HASREE
WHHRFREEEER 2 SHFE -
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BMAXRZ (&)

(@) The Group and the Company had the following (a) AEERARGRRE A E RS
material transactions and balances with related THERR S REBRET o

parties during the year.

The Group AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FHET FHTT
Transactions R
Management fee income for U TR ARIRESEE
the provision of group B BiRE -
management, IT, marketing T35 HE & R A TR
and administration TENEEBIA
support from: (i)
— fellow subsidiaries — REKERE 2,508 7,916
Commission income ERASWA -
shared from: (ii)
- a fellow subsidiary — RIRKBAA - 39
Management fee expense for  MIA TR GHEHEEA
the provision of information B TIE BB ER
technology support, financial N #3uk 4 #ARS
system and websites MGHE - BFERS
maintenance services, REENERSE
marketing promotion, X :
customer services and
reconciliation to: (iii)
— ultimate holding company — SRR AR 661 2,543
— fellow subsidiaries — RARWBAF] 328 82
Outstanding balances REBER
Due from related parties: JfE U BA B 5 FRIE
— ultimate holding company — RRFENRA A (v) 23 -
— fellow subsidiaries G E NG (Vviii) 75 201
Other assets and prepayments: H{th& & & FE {308 - (vi)
— travel advances to key —TEEBAEMN
management = IRE K 3 1
Due to related parties: & <t BBt 5 =k0E (vii)
— fellow subsidiaries — RRKBAE 312 698
— ultimate holding company — RARPERR A A - 3,683
139
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27

140

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BHMEREZ (&)
(continued) (a (&)
The Company KA T
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FHET FHEIT
Outstanding balances REBLER
Due from related parties: JE s B g 75 SRR
— subsidiary — B A A (iv) 65,907 23,252
— ultimate holding company — RARPERR A A (v) 12 =

Due to related parties: JE 1~ B HES 5 SRR (vii)

— subsidiaries — B AF 663 9,269

Notes: Hiet

() Management fee income is determined with () EHEBEPATCZIEHELE
reference to the cost of provision of group B BAEK - S HEERTT
management, IT, marketing and administration B R IRIEHIK A IIZE B ETE °
support services plus mark up.

(ii) Commission income is charged with reference (i1) WE WA TBRZHEHEGTE=
to the profit sharing arrangement with FTIZ 958 P 7 BEZ R
independent third parties.

(iii)  Management fee expenses are charged for the (i)  EEBEX TR IEHEA K
provision of information technology support, Xk MGHEE EERER
marketing, customer services and reconciliation, HhR - BB EGRA L AEER
financial system and web sites maintenance BEZELHEAMANE -
services with reference to the costs incurred.

(iv)  Amounts due from a subsidiary represents (iv)  [ERHE R 7R 75 BEKVBNZ

intercompany loans with KVBNZ, which are
interest bearing and repayable in accordance
with loan agreements agreed by both parties.
The amounts due from a subsidiary were
unsecured, except for US$2,500,000 which is
secured by charging over the assets of KVBNZ
in the form of a general security agreement
entered by both parties.

REIFH B Z A BT
W RFEET 15 E 1) B3 175 % 15
i o $£2500,000% 7T #% & 7
FETH) — AR IE R 75 34 T2 2
KVBNZE ZE# A & ZE B IR
Sh o JEN B 2 F KR AR
7 e
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27 BMAXRZ (&)

(a) (continued) (@ (&)

The Company (continued) ABRT (&)

Notes: (continued) Kiat - (&)

(v) Amounts due from ultimate holding company are (v) JE Y8R AR F5E IR 23 A 707 3 A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable # - B EREEEKERE -
on demand.

(vi) Travel advances to key management are (i) EFEEEANSRERBADE
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable A - 2EREAIZEKIEE -
on demand.

(vii)  Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, vii)  FETEE T K EBELR - &
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. ERBIEEIEE -

(vii)  Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are (viii)  FEYL [B] [T B 1 7] 5 H B A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable 2L RIZEFKERE -
on demand.

(b) Key management includes directors (executive b) FAEEZZEEE (BEHTRIE
& non-executive) and the remuneration of the HMITES) NEZEIEAE BB
key management personnel of the Group was as LU
follows:

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET T

Salary and other benefits e REMET 1,161 1,800
Employer’s contribution to BEERKREEEIHR

pension scheme 30 28

Discretionary bonuses BB FEAL 827 882

Other benefits E A EF] 960 1,114

2,978 3,824
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28

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 28 AERIASBE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Contracted but not provided for BRI AVE R EBE 915 915
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHERE
The Group leases offices under non-cancellable REERBERSFE BT A HUEH
operating lease commitments existing at the year KEHEFRIERERAE - K

end. Leases were negotiated for an average term

of 3 to 6 years.

zpfij:i/\iﬁéﬁﬁ °

The Group is required to give six months notice for REBEBZE N SEABMG &I
termination of these leases. ZEHE -

2013 2012

—E-=F —ET—_fF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT T

Within one year —FN 12,519 15,207

One to five years —ZZFa4E 10,070 22,208

22,589 37,415
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29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1.

On 10 January 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company has granted 40,000,000 share options to
68 individuals (“Grantees”) for their subscription of
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 per share of the
Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.414
per share, with varying vesting period and validity
from the date of grant. 40 out of 68 of the Grantees
are granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years and a vesting period
of one year from the date of grant. 28 remaining
Grantees are granted share options which are
exercisable for a period of two years from the date
of grant, with a vesting period of two years from
the date of grant. All of the share options have no
vesting condition. Among the 40,000,000 share
options granted, 14,920,000 share options were
granted to six directors of the Company.

Management is in the process of evaluating the fair
value of the share options and its financial impact
on the Group.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2013 of HK$0.5 cents per ordinary share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$10,000,000 is
recommended at the Board of Directors meeting
on 19 March 2014. The proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

30 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized

for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2014.

o B S R M

29 HAE=EIR

1.

RZZE—WMF—A+H ARA=E
E2M8E AL ([BERAD B
40,000,00017 i B - 1% R
AQREREEC.OVE LA LA

B o

ZEBRENIRETR0.414BTTH
B TLAITE - &0 AR
SREHREREE R - 685 & X
AFH40B R AN EF AT R = FH
BARTERERE BBHARE
HEAREFT REA—F - R 28R ER
ANERA G E L B SRR E N
WITEMERE  BEBHEREA
HiRET REIMT - MEBRESE
55 B K1 - B & T #940,000,000
DIBIRER » RRABNBERER
14,920,00017 BE A% 4 ©

BEE AN GBRENRAEA
EERAKEBNOHBRE -

R-ZF-—NFE=ZA+NBRITZE
FegR tERRNEBE—_T—=
FH+ZR=+—BIEFENRAR

BERITER.SHEI (BB B
10,000,000 7T) - HEZZT — =
F+-_A=Z+—BLFEZES
Ml B AR EER R AT Rg L&
SRR HE A -

30 H#EMB®RE

AP BREAEFTEN 2

—mE=A+

JUBHEAE BRI T E -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 2

A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last three financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements,
is set out below.

ATEIERBEEREREEAERAR (AR
Al EZEREMBARSE I ANEE]) £6FE=
EMBRFEEARTIE 2 XEBRHBARARE - T5
RSB ENREER T BHRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+T—HLEFE

2013 2012 2011
—E—= —F—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT T
Total income Nk 176,719 123,222 155,242
Profit before tax R 75 A A1 50,130 2,432 50,305
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmH(EE) 34,774 (1,749) 35,555
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 HE W 4258 33,010 2,837 33,301

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—H

2013 2012 2011
—F-=Ff T T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET F&TT
Total assets BERE 569,993 408,006 397,035
Total liabilities BERE (187,894) (175,254) (210,211)
382,099 232,752 186,824
Total equity and liabilities REDKAE 569,993 408,006 397,035
Net current assets MENEEFE 375,403 226,470 180,930
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 382,374 233,131 187,299

Note:

The summary of the financial information of the Group for each of two
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from
the prospectus of the Company dated 11 June 2013. Such summary
was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had been in

existence throughout these financial years.
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